



Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation  
5th Floor, Hunt Library  
Carnegie Mellon University  
4909 Frew Street  
Pittsburgh, PA 15213-3890  
Telephone: 412-268-2434  
Email: [huntinst@andrew.cmu.edu](mailto:huntinst@andrew.cmu.edu)  
Web site: [www.huntbotanical.org](http://www.huntbotanical.org)

The Hunt Institute is committed to making its collections accessible for research. We are pleased to offer this digitized item.

*Usage guidelines*

We have provided this low-resolution, digitized version for research purposes. To inquire about publishing any images from this item, please contact the Institute.

*About the Institute*

The Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation, a research division of Carnegie Mellon University, specializes in the history of botany and all aspects of plant science and serves the international scientific community through research and documentation. To this end, the Institute acquires and maintains authoritative collections of books, plant images, manuscripts, portraits and data files, and provides publications and other modes of information service. The Institute meets the reference needs of botanists, biologists, historians, conservationists, librarians, bibliographers and the public at large, especially those concerned with any aspect of the North American flora.

Hunt Institute was dedicated in 1961 as the Rachel McMasters Miller Hunt Botanical Library, an international center for bibliographical research and service in the interests of botany and horticulture, as well as a center for the study of all aspects of the history of the plant sciences. By 1971 the Library's activities had so diversified that the name was changed to Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation. Growth in collections and research projects led to the establishment of four programmatic departments: Archives, Art, Bibliography and the Library.

From the desk of



Nov 22/89

PREM P. JAUHAR, PH.D.

Do you have a  
spare list of your  
publications?

many thanks  
Prem

To a great cytogeneticist and  
evolutionist Professor Asaelli Löve

Prem  
AN EVALUATION OF BAUM ET AL.'S ASSESSMENT OF THE GENOMIC SYSTEM OF CLASSIFICATION IN THE TRITICEAE

PREM P. JAUHAR AND CHARLES F. CRANE

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Made in United States of America  
Reprinted from AMERICAN JOURNAL OF BOTANY  
Vol. 76, No. 4, April, 1989  
Copyright 1989 by the Botanical Society of America, Inc.

南京大学生物学系 合編  
中国科学院植物研究所

# 中国主要植物圖說

## 禾本科

主編 耿以礼

編輯人 (以姓名笔划多少为次序, 右上角有 \* 符号者为繪圖人員)

Beijing Bot Inst	* Mrs. Lin.	刘 亮	郭本兆	* Guo Ben Zhao -
		史渭清*	湯彦承 -	* Tang Beijing Inst Bot
		仲世奇*	馮晉庸*	* There are
	* Mrs. Chan →	陈守良	馮鍾元*	many
Prof. Keng (father)		耿以礼	賈良智	botanists I
" " (son)		耿伯介	蔣杏牆*	met in the
				in 1980

科 学 出 版 社

1965





...lytically the Eumitral stage genus Elytrigia in its strict sense. ~~The N higher~~  
~~the~~ On morphological grounds it may be assumed that the N higher  
 could be identical with the ~~the~~ cytologically still not certainly identical  
 so-called X genome that together with the J genome of Pentaploids  
 seems to have given rise to the widespread but moderately sized  
 rhizomatous genus Leymus. ~~But~~ fact, thus, it may be one of the  
 same higher of the ~~the~~ complex polyploid monotypic North American genus  
Pentaploids. ~~But~~ is also a likely argument, ~~the genome~~ together  
 with the S ~~the~~ higher, of the mainly Eumitral ~~the~~ caespitose genus  
Elytrigoides (NS) which was tentatively placed in the series Stipiflorae of Elytrigia  
 by Nees ( ). Whereas the S higher has combined with the H higher of  
 the present ~~of~~ Elymus ~~is~~ its very large and widespread genus Elymus  
 in its wide sense. And both the S and N higher share a place with  
 the ~~the~~ H and J higher of the ~~the~~ <sup>complex</sup> genome of the polyploid monotypic  
 North American prairie grass genus Pentaploids, ~~with~~ the distribution  
 which seems to indicate an origin as late as during the last part  
 of the Pleistocene.

Since all the species concerned have not as yet been ~~studied~~  
 hybridized ~~in order to~~ for an analysis of their genomes and higher, and  
 several still remain even cytologically unknown, their classification is, in  
 these cases, based on morphological observations only. ~~However~~ This is  
 however, usually possible by aid of morphological observations alone,  
~~since~~ because each higher, as well as each polyploid genome, are  
 characterized by distinct characters of a diagnostic significance.  
 Nevertheless, some uncertainty may prevail, and then especially  
 as to the classification of the ~~the~~ <sup>new</sup> Section thalassia as a  
 section of Elytrigia s. str. because the genome constitution of  
~~these species~~ of these species as being ENS as in Elytrigia  
prospere is deduced from morphological evidence alone, since only  
 one or a few species has been cytologically studied, none involved  
 in hybridization experiments, and we have seen only a limited  
~~material~~ herbarium material of some, not all, the taxa involved.  
 But in that conclusion, as in possible misinterpretations of  
 cases of which experimental and cytological evidence is lacking,  
 we stand corrected when ~~the~~ more reliable evidence becomes available.



The grasses that we call chestgrasses, or the relatives of cultivated wheat that taxonomist classify in the tribe Triticeae of the family Poaceae, are plants of meadows of various sizes in mountains and on steppes in all the continents. Some of them are common over wide areas and ~~are~~ are gregarious so they may alone cover almost all the plains with fodder for livestock, ~~at the~~ but most ~~grow~~ straddle alone or in low numbers as parts of various plant associations. These grasses are most numerous and most visible on the mountains and steppes in the lands of southwestern Asia which the ancients called the Great, or from India to Turkey and from the southern Siberian steppes to the Indian Ocean, but ~~they~~ some prefer arctic climates and a few live in tropical mountains, and ~~some~~ some are even found on isolated oceanic islands like Norfolk and Reunion.

Digitized by The Hun Institute for Botanical Documentation

The chestgrasses are characterized by being either annual or perennial grasses of various height, with flat, convolute or sometimes linear leaves. Their leaf-sheaths usually have small auricles at the mouth and the ligule is membranous and often short and blunt (two-lobed). The leaf-blades have the anther characteristic of the so-called festucoid grasses, or...

Maxley 74: J. Linn 1560?

Here I must make a brief methodological digression. The method of approach to any scientific problem is clearly of extreme importance, and will to a large extent determine the type of discovery made.

The hybridization led to the discovery that ~~two~~ <sup>two</sup> can species of the same genus, in this case *Agropyron*, reacted very differently when crossed with wheat, so that -



In the past, the wheatgrasses have been recognized as wheat, rye and barley by the ancients, but although they may have been aware of some of the non-cultivated species and named them, later generations have not been able to ~~the~~ identify such names. Linnaeus named 28 species which he placed in the genera Triticum, Elymus, Secale, Hordeum and Fragaria, and the mixed and one species in the genus Bromus; in modern opinion these taxa represent only 22 biological species. Since his time numerous ~~taxa~~ taxa have been ~~described~~ described from within this group, ~~so~~ so that presently we recognize almost 500 taxa of which about 220 seem to be at least reasonably good biological species. It may be of interest at this stage to mention that of these taxa 328, or about 70%, are known as to their chromosome number, ~~and~~ that the karyotype or idiogram has been determined for 226, or 45% of them, and that about 100 of these taxa <sup>or 20%</sup> have taken part in about 300 <sup>official</sup> hybrid combinations that have been analyzed as to their meiosis. No other tribe ~~of~~ or group of comparable size has been so intensively studied.

Here I would like to make a brief methodological deviation before continuing a discussion of the classification of these grasses, which since Linnaeus have been periodically brought into a few ~~or~~ split into ~~and~~ numerous genera on basis of various considerations.

The method of approach to a scientific problem of this kind is clearly of extreme importance and so is the philosophical thinking behind the conclusions to be drawn, because they will to a large extent determine the type of discovery ~~to~~ made or the classification proposed. Putting the matter the other way round, the method of approach is itself largely dictated by the type of answer you want to obtain: it is, in fact, a kind of a question. Furthermore, the question will alter with time and the progress of discovery: when one method has yielded the main crop of answers that it could be expected to provide, it is time to ask another kind of question, by adopting a new method.

The original approach to plant taxonomy inevitably was descriptive; because botanists set out to describe as fully and accurately as possible the variation of plants and the phenomena which they exhibit. This approach

is designed to answer the basic question about what are the facts ~~in~~ in the wider sense of the word so the plant can be classified and again ~~be~~ identified by simple observational methods as inevitably are used by non-specialists and by floristic botanists, who do not require more exact information. Though this formal approach meets categories as do all kinds of studies, these may be rather arbitrarily chosen and hardly need to be more closely defined.

When scientific knowledge advances, so the requirements of exactness the descriptive approach is supplemented by the cognitive. This is first focused around the grouping or classification because we need to know what pattern or system ~~is~~ an assemblage of plants has in common, and what distinct types there are at various levels of characterization. In the wheatgrasses, this led to a somewhat confused state, since ~~is~~ ~~is~~ a considerable degree of arbitrariness cannot be avoided as long as the morphological method is supplemented only by analytical and geographical considerations that hardly are sufficient for conclusions as to ~~physical relationships~~ the grade of physical relationships. Since ~~is~~ ~~is~~ following the morphological method concluded that many of the more than 100 species that were discovered during the century following Linnaeus were correctly classified in small ~~and~~ ~~and~~ genera of which more than fifty were described, whereas others used the same method as a basis for lumping this variety into only the genus Stipa Krause used the same method as a basis for lumping all the wheatgrasses into a single genus, which he called Frustraria, an illegitimate one also according to the nomenclatural rules of his time. More moderate lapses, however, selected a few distinct morphological traits as a basis for placing all these species in the ~~genus~~ ~~genus~~ Tripsacum, Secale and Elymus and the large genus Hordeum, Agropyron and Elymus, an arrangement that was generally accepted all over the world until half a century ago and still is predominant in ~~is~~ ~~is~~ the modern manuals for the English-speaking nations, though not in ~~is~~ ~~is~~ the conservative Flora Europaea. Implicit in this system was the idea of physical

relationship, although its nature remained diffuse & dim. With the acceptance of the fact of evolution, this implicit postulate became explicit and the question posed by the comparative method became correspondingly altered: behind common patterns we were reaching for common origins. The result was ~~a mere phy~~ is a more phylogenetic classification, a classification - intended to express evolutionary descent and relationships, rather than just a convenient pigeon-holing system. When such a classification was first attempted for the wheatgrasses, by the Russian taxonomist Nevskii <sup>(Pavlov, at University of Moscow, 1918-1922)</sup> in the 1920s, it was based on morphology, geography and anatomy and a little cytology, ~~but~~ <sup>but</sup> no experiments, and it resulted in the acceptance of about 30 genera, some of which were extremely narrowly defined while others remained collective. Nevertheless, this led to extensive experiments that has resulted in ~~the~~ ~~most~~ ~~extensive~~ <sup>hybridization</sup> <sup>crossing</sup> <sup>of</sup> all these genera in various <sup>directions</sup> <sup>ways</sup>, studies of the meiotic divisions <sup>of these hybrids</sup> <sup>(at times of the</sup> <sup>possible</sup> <sup>genital</sup> <sup>relationship</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>these</sup> <sup>genera</sup>, and to ~~investigation~~ <sup>cytological</sup> <sup>investigation</sup> of 70% of the about 500 taxa now recognized. ~~That has made~~ <sup>An evaluation</sup> <sup>of</sup> <sup>these</sup> <sup>extensive</sup> <sup>investigations</sup> <sup>has</sup> <sup>led</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>some</sup> <sup>work</sup> <sup>has</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>a</sup> <sup>considerable</sup> <sup>extent</sup> <sup>been</sup> <sup>based</sup> <sup>on</sup> <sup>these</sup> <sup>which</sup> <sup>for</sup> <sup>practical</sup> <sup>reasons</sup> <sup>has</sup> <sup>to</sup> <sup>a</sup> <sup>considerable</sup> <sup>degree</sup> <sup>been</sup> <sup>directly</sup> <sup>or</sup> <sup>indirectly</sup> <sup>based</sup> <sup>on</sup> <sup>the</sup> <sup>Nevskii</sup> <sup>conclusions</sup>, has led to <sup>several</sup> <sup>revisions</sup> of the classification of the wheatgrasses at the specific and generic levels and also of the limits of the tribe Triticeae itself ~~to which are~~ <sup>to which</sup> <sup>some</sup> <sup>Soviet</sup>, and Nevskii, had attached <sup>a few</sup> <sup>genera</sup> that the new methods have found to be unrelated to the group. It must be mentioned that ~~these~~

Digitized by eGangotri Institute for Botanical Documentation

Before ~~recommencing~~ <sup>discussing</sup> the ~~various~~ <sup>taxonomic</sup> <sup>conclusions</sup> that various students have made on basis of the results of the new methods, I would like to review briefly the methods themselves. The new approach has universally accepted the so-called biological species concept so its main discussions concern the generic classification of the taxa, not their basic circumscription or delimitation.



Before discussing the taxonomic conclusions that various students have drawn on basis of the results arrived at by aid of the new methods, I would like to review briefly the methods themselves.

1) The morphological method. I can be brief about this approach, which is based on description and comparison of morphological traits. Although ~~one or two~~ other characters are important for the classification of the ~~Poaceae~~ grasses as a group or for the distinction at the generic level, a strong emphasis is laid upon the study of minute floral characters - ~~some~~ basis of which ~~was~~ especially Nashii derived his many genera. They concern the

To this method belong the observation of the growth habit of the plant, its being annual or perennial, the tough or fragile character of the rachis, the number of spikelets at each node of the rachis, the morphology of each spikelet, the number of florets ~~at each~~ in each spikelet, the shape ~~of the glume and lemma~~ and ~~presence~~ of ~~the~~ ~~glume~~ ~~and~~ ~~lemma~~ and the presence or absence and type of the awn. Although consideration of these characters ~~usually~~ ~~lead~~ ~~to~~ ~~more~~ ~~genera~~ ~~than~~ ~~are~~ ~~now~~ ~~accepted~~ were accepted by the DeCandolle school that still dominates in the flora of the English-speaking world, ~~this~~ ~~approach~~ ~~can~~ ~~logically~~ ~~lead~~ ~~to~~ ~~rather~~ ~~different~~ ~~results~~, as we can see on the (following) table that is reproduced from Sahasrto (1973, p. 12).

Table II

The variation is not only in the acceptance of ~~genera~~ circumscription of genera but also in the delimitation of the subspecies.

Table II

Sahasrto (1973, p. 12) disregarded the traditional classification which he found to be misleading, and instead classified the morphologically distinguished groups on basis of their distribution, growth habit, and the number of spikelets at the node of the rachis (figure!)



~~2) Anderson's phylogenetic diagram~~

As a variant of the morphological method, our group in Winnipeg in the early 1950's made ~~offensive~~ comparisons of certain <sup>polyloid</sup> groups of wheatgrasses by aid of the method of extrapolated correlations proposed by Edgar Anderson in his book a tetraploid hybridization published in 1949, since we believed that this method might reveal relationships and differences that the conventional morphological approach ~~could not~~ could not easily discover. By aid of this tedious method we could convince ourselves that the group of Elymus ~~and the~~ circling around the species acuminatus is unrelated to other species than classified either as Elymus or Agropyron and then concluded that it ~~was~~ would be wise to accept for it the generic name Leymus that had been ignored since its publication by Hochstetter (1851?). The method found its proper use, however, in the work by our student Soshko aided by Stebbins, when they could demonstrate that the so-called B-genome of tetraploid and hexaploid wheat ~~is not~~ is similar to the genome of the Lycopodium group of the collective genus Agropyron (for Soshko & Stebbins, p. 298).

By aid of this method it has also been possible to demonstrate that the genus Elytrigia is unrelated to Elymus ~~and also etc.~~, that the genus Hurdellia ~~is~~ is an allotetraploid of ~~the~~ ~~genus~~ a parental Hurdellia, and that the parental species of the genus Leymus are most likely ~~to~~ ~~be~~ ~~taxa~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~genus~~ Psathyrostachys ~~and~~ ~~a~~ ~~species~~ ~~of~~ a diploid species of the subgenus Psathyrostachys and the tetraploid species related to the so-called Agropyron juncea.

2) Another variant of the morphological approach uses computer techniques for so-called character analysis. Since the computer does not think, he must be fed the available data and then programmed to analyze the ~~in fact~~ <sup>to</sup> clusters (they) and analyze them to evaluate them in various ways. Although this technique has been tried for parts of the Triticeae by some botanists, it has been employed for ~~all the tax~~ most of the tax only by Bernard Barv of Ottawa, who advocated on basis of a detailed cluster analysis the acceptance of 28 genera that form at least four distinct groups. The perhaps most remarkable results of this analysis, ~~that~~ is that the ~~the~~ cultivated ~~the~~ Hordeum is widely distant from the species of the indigenous Hordeastrum, and that the ~~isolated~~ supposedly isolated genus Horvadii may be closely related to Triticum and Aegilops. It ought to be pointed out, ~~however~~, that no experimental or cytological observations were used in this analysis, ~~which might~~ and that whereas most of the genera were narrowly defined, some others were very collective, but ~~it is~~ ~~concluded~~ that the results seem to suggest a wide splitting rather than extensive lumping of these genera.

Fig. 7-9.  
Table 3  
Dun (1971), p. 295

Digitized by Hun Institute for Botanical Documentation

3) The cytological approach is based on studies of the number of the chromosomes and ~~the~~ of the so-called karyotype or idiogram. The number itself, which has been determined for 70% of the tax, is of ~~the~~ interest as a distinction between diploid tax and their auto- and allopolyploid derivatives, whereas the karyotype or idiogram is important for the identification of so-called homologues and their variants and for the recognition of auto- and allopolyploidy based on these homologues. This method was first used on a big scale on the genera Aegilops and Triticum ~~by Senyavin-Khorchagin~~ by Senyavin-Khorchagin in 1920 (she was a student of Levitsky in Leningrad), and he and our students in Winnipeg and Montreal made great efforts to ~~analyze~~ analyze as many species as ~~could~~ possible, especially the diploids. ~~that~~ We succeeded in analyzing the karyotype of 45% of the wheats, or in 226 taxa, but so far only the results of studies on the wheats and Aegilops and a few other annual genera have been published by Sidor ~~and~~ by Chumachenko.





~~which in 1944~~ but also to the cytological conjecture, by <sup>Kayman (1926)</sup> ~~Loewenherz (1927)~~  
 of the occurrence of three distinct karyotypes of 7 chromosomes each in  
 the <sup>polyploid</sup> series of wheat species. In 1944 the search led to the discovery,  
 by Ullrich & McFadden & Lewis independently, of the ~~so-called~~ D-gene  
 in the diploid species *Aegilops squarrosa*, ~~which is or was~~  
 or more accurately more correct *Aegilops tauschii* <sup>of the Vetches section of the genus.</sup>  
~~at the~~ For one reason, the D-gene evaded discovery for twelve more  
 years it was first discovered, in the ~~Siberian~~ <sup>Siberian</sup> section the *Sibirica* section  
 of *Aegilops*, by Sahar & Stebbins (1956), ~~not~~ not by aid of the methods  
 of Ullrich but through the application of the so-called method of  
 cytogenetical cytology, proposed for discovery of one hybrid parent when another  
 is known, by Edgar Anderson in 1949.



The karyotypic studies ~~are~~ ~~based~~ with ~~the~~ results of gene-analysis were used by Chmura and Sauer in support of the reinstatement of the genera Amelogyne, Everogyne and Agropyron s. str. and we based our ~~revision~~ ~~on~~ ~~revision~~, in 1961, of the genus Leymus as distinct from Elymus on the observation that both its karyomes are significantly distinct from both ~~the~~ the karyomes of any Elymus, in addition to morphological distinctions - which Hochstetter (1888) had made his <sup>wise</sup> ~~splitting~~ splitting of these genera that ~~since~~ had been signed for over a century. As for other ~~proposed~~ genera described by past taxonomists, ~~it was just that these genera~~ ~~distinct~~ ~~of~~ ~~karyome~~ ~~combinations~~ ~~characterize~~ ~~the~~ ~~genera~~ and presently accepted by at least one taxonomist

But felt that the additional morphological and hybridization evidence was needed so that they could be taken without one hesitation. That evidence has since been available so there seems to be only the classical circumstance of an indirect demonstration that may counter ~~the~~ the acceptance of such a proposal, and ~~the~~ ~~that~~ its ~~rather~~ general rejection is only a matter of time & convenience.

ADDUM,

# TINES

auto: A. Utricularia

F Utricularia

H Cistaceae

P Agropyron

E Leymus

N Thurbergia

S Pseudopyrum

V Dasyphyllum

X Festuca

by seeing what Zohary & Feldman (1962) apparently found proved for further evolution,

~~Although only a few of the~~ ~~hybrids~~

Only six of the 24 ~~hybrids~~ were found to have taken ~~the~~ part in allopoloid evolution, but 8 <sup>hybrids</sup> have formed autopoloid series, even up to the octopoloid & decaploid levels. ~~As~~ As indicated by this, most of the diploid tax- & many of the polyploid ones have a very low crossability, although ~~all have to~~ it has been possible to form hybrids between at least some of them so that there is no doubt that the entire tribe can be regarded as a single complex in the sense of Daneser, whatever that may mean. I take it to signify that the tribe *Triticeae* is a natural unit that has evolved by chromosomal rearrangement from a single original haploid or karyotype ~~but that still retains the chromosomal~~ so that although the chromosomes of the ~~most~~ present *hybrids* pair only slightly or not at all, they retain essentially the same major genes so some crossability is maintained. Others may interpret this differently. ~~without without ignoring~~ It is my <sup>opinion</sup> also that the generic *Triticum* described in the *Triticeae* both by aid of hybridization & karyotype study makes it possible to divide the tribe into evolutionarily & genetically well defined genera in a manner more logical than any such groups have ever been classified, & thus point the way for future evolutionary classification at the generic level of other such complexes.





~~Although~~ The concept of the genetically defined genus inevitably  
 leads to the splitting of some complex genera of the past, ~~as, e.g.,~~  
 as, e.g., the genera Agropyron, Triticum, Hordeum, <sup>Elymus s.l.</sup> ~~and~~ Elytrigia, Agropyron s.l.  
 However, it also dictates the ~~lumping~~ lumping of some such groups into a single  
 genus because of their close genetic relationship, ~~as for instance~~  
 as for instance the genera Anthoxanthum, Cochlearia, Hystrix & Sitonia,  
 all of which are characterized by the genetic constitution HS typical  
 of Elymus s.str., the by far the largest genus of the tribe.



If the generic classification by generic constitution is adopted, extensive splitting seems to be required only for new splitting seems to be required only for the Phyllogon-Triticea group and for ~~Elymus~~ Agropyron and Elymus as defined by those adhering to the Bentham still adhering to the Bentham concept of the wheatgrasses, ~~and the~~ <sup>the</sup> Elytrigia complex as <sup>still</sup> defined by the Pennins. ~~to the~~ ~~the~~ ~~the~~ Phyllogon group the Elytrigia group as still defined by most authors who separate it from Elymus and Leymus. At the same time, the smaller genera ~~intermediate~~ of the Elymineae accepted by Nevski and ~~some~~ ~~other~~ some older authors have been found to be composed of the higher ~~that~~ ~~of~~ Critaria and ~~of~~ ~~of~~ Pseudo some higher as Elymus s. str., so they must be united with that genus; the groups in question are Anthoxanthum, Agrostis, Clinelymus, Cochlospermum, Hystrix, Roegneria, Sitanion and Taraxacum.

If the generic designation by genomic constitution is adopted, it will strengthen the delimitation of several natural genera already described & accepted. This will be the fact with the ~~genus~~ genus Amthopyrum (genus --), which Eij (1929) separated from Agropyron & all later authors have accepted, Agropyron in the strict sense (genus --), Secale (genus --),

Dasyopyrum (genus --), Eranopyrum ( ), Heteranthelium ( ), Harvardia ( ), ~~genus~~ Critheopsis ( ), Taraxiatherum ( ), Haldelyrum ( ), Penthyrostachys ( ), Agropyron s. str. ( ), Leymus ( ), & Elymus s. str. ( ). It will also suggest the separation of the wild barley of ~~the cultivated~~ as the genus Critem, which is widely distinct from the cultivated barley of the genus Hordeum ( ). It will, likewise, require that genera as widely accepted as Anthoxanthum, Olinelymus, Cochlyrus, Hystrix, Roegneria, & Sitana & Tarrellia be sunk into the natural genus Elymus since they are all characterized by the genomic constitution 4S.

Since none of us seems to appreciate to have to change ones that we have been used to,  
(To propose any change in classification inevitably seems to make  
even some scientists angry because they disagree without being able  
to directly say why - but it makes them think. The proposal to  
define genera phylogenetically by aid of their genomic constitution  
~~is~~ certainly offers hope for the future of evolutionary  
classification with bold new perspectives & new ideas &  
new approaches to problems that taxonomists have dreamt of  
solving but frequently succumb (capitulate) to as being unsolvable.  
~~But~~ And although this evolutionarily soundest of solutions  
sometimes is inevitably radical in its extreme splitting,<sup>(in a system sense)</sup>  
& sometimes equally conservative in its attempt to keep,<sup>(in a system sense)</sup>  
it is always logical & therefore just what has to be  
done. It is rather matter that its ~~very~~ acceptance  
may have to wait for a while. The generation of our  
grandchildren, as even the great Linnaeus found when  
he presented his classical *Species Plantarum*. But it has to  
be done now nevertheless.

This is probably not the ultimate solution of the ~~genus~~ problem of generic definition,  
since none of our solutions is more than preliminary. And ~~no~~ nobody is forced  
to swallow it justright & not even after long chewing. It is also likely that we  
will not to accept the generic genus for one group & reject them for another.  
That is your privilege. But I am <sup>in no doubt</sup> convinced that it will be accepted <sup>if not quite</sup>  
as ~~regretted~~, the generation of our grandchildren, who ~~will then~~ <sup>always be</sup> must be  
the ultimate judges of our efforts & ideas.



Hydroxyl = X = 15; Acetyl group = 43; Carboxyl = 45; Amino = 17; Sulfhydryl = 33; Methyl = 15; Ethyl = 29; Propyl = 43; Butyl = 57; Pentyl = 71; Hexyl = 85; Heptyl = 99; Octyl = 113; Nonyl = 127; Decyl = 141; Undecyl = 155; Dodecyl = 169; Tridecyl = 183; Tetradecyl = 197; Pentadecyl = 211; Hexadecyl = 225; Heptadecyl = 239; Octadecyl = 253; Nonadecyl = 267; Eicosyl = 281; Heneicosyl = 295; Docosyl = 309; Tricosyl = 323; Tetracosyl = 337; Pentacosyl = 351; Hexacosyl = 365; Heptacosyl = 379; Octacosyl = 393; Nonacosyl = 407;triacontyl = 421; triacontyl = 435; tetracontyl = 449; pentacosyl = 463; hexacosyl = 477; heptacosyl = 491; octacosyl = 505; nonacosyl = 519;triacontyl = 533; triacontyl = 547; tetracontyl = 561; pentacosyl = 575; hexacosyl = 589; heptacosyl = 603; octacosyl = 617; nonacosyl = 631;triacontyl = 645; triacontyl = 659; tetracontyl = 673; pentacosyl = 687; hexacosyl = 701; heptacosyl = 715; octacosyl = 729; nonacosyl = 743;triacontyl = 757; triacontyl = 771; tetracontyl = 785; pentacosyl = 799; hexacosyl = 813; heptacosyl = 827; octacosyl = 841; nonacosyl = 855;triacontyl = 869; triacontyl = 883; tetracontyl = 897; pentacosyl = 911; hexacosyl = 925; heptacosyl = 939; octacosyl = 953; nonacosyl = 967;triacontyl = 981; triacontyl = 995; tetracontyl = 1009; pentacosyl = 1023; hexacosyl = 1037; heptacosyl = 1051; octacosyl = 1065; nonacosyl = 1079;triacontyl = 1093; triacontyl = 1107; tetracontyl = 1121; pentacosyl = 1135; hexacosyl = 1149; heptacosyl = 1163; octacosyl = 1177; nonacosyl = 1191;triacontyl = 1205; triacontyl = 1219; tetracontyl = 1233; pentacosyl = 1247; hexacosyl = 1261; heptacosyl = 1275; octacosyl = 1289; nonacosyl = 1303;triacontyl = 1317; triacontyl = 1331; tetracontyl = 1345; pentacosyl = 1359; hexacosyl = 1373; heptacosyl = 1387; octacosyl = 1401; nonacosyl = 1415;triacontyl = 1429; triacontyl = 1443; tetracontyl = 1457; pentacosyl = 1471; hexacosyl = 1485; heptacosyl = 1499; octacosyl = 1513; nonacosyl = 1527;triacontyl = 1541; triacontyl = 1555; tetracontyl = 1569; pentacosyl = 1583; hexacosyl = 1597; heptacosyl = 1611; octacosyl = 1625; nonacosyl = 1639;triacontyl = 1653; triacontyl = 1667; tetracontyl = 1681; pentacosyl = 1695; hexacosyl = 1709; heptacosyl = 1723; octacosyl = 1737; nonacosyl = 1751;triacontyl = 1765; triacontyl = 1779; tetracontyl = 1793; pentacosyl = 1807; hexacosyl = 1821; heptacosyl = 1835; octacosyl = 1849; nonacosyl = 1863;triacontyl = 1877; triacontyl = 1891; tetracontyl = 1905; pentacosyl = 1919; hexacosyl = 1933; heptacosyl = 1947; octacosyl = 1961; nonacosyl = 1975;triacontyl = 1989; triacontyl = 2003; tetracontyl = 2017; pentacosyl = 2031; hexacosyl = 2045; heptacosyl = 2059; octacosyl = 2073; nonacosyl = 2087;triacontyl = 2101; triacontyl = 2115; tetracontyl = 2129; pentacosyl = 2143; hexacosyl = 2157; heptacosyl = 2171; octacosyl = 2185; nonacosyl = 2199;triacontyl = 2213; triacontyl = 2227; tetracontyl = 2241; pentacosyl = 2255; hexacosyl = 2269; heptacosyl = 2283; octacosyl = 2297; nonacosyl = 2311;triacontyl = 2325; triacontyl = 2339; tetracontyl = 2353; pentacosyl = 2367; hexacosyl = 2381; heptacosyl = 2395; octacosyl = 2409; nonacosyl = 2423;triacontyl = 2437; triacontyl = 2451; tetracontyl = 2465; pentacosyl = 2479; hexacosyl = 2493; heptacosyl = 2507; octacosyl = 2521; nonacosyl = 2535;triacontyl = 2549; triacontyl = 2563; tetracontyl = 2577; pentacosyl = 2591; hexacosyl = 2605; heptacosyl = 2619; octacosyl = 2633; nonacosyl = 2647;triacontyl = 2661; triacontyl = 2675; tetracontyl = 2689; pentacosyl = 2703; hexacosyl = 2717; heptacosyl = 2731; octacosyl = 2745; nonacosyl = 2759;triacontyl = 2773; triacontyl = 2787; tetracontyl = 2801; pentacosyl = 2815; hexacosyl = 2829; heptacosyl = 2843; octacosyl = 2857; nonacosyl = 2871;triacontyl = 2885; triacontyl = 2899; tetracontyl = 2913; pentacosyl = 2927; hexacosyl = 2941; heptacosyl = 2955; octacosyl = 2969; nonacosyl = 2983;triacontyl = 2997; triacontyl = 3011; tetracontyl = 3025; pentacosyl = 3039; hexacosyl = 3053; heptacosyl = 3067; octacosyl = 3081; nonacosyl = 3095;triacontyl = 3109; triacontyl = 3123; tetracontyl = 3137; pentacosyl = 3151; hexacosyl = 3165; heptacosyl = 3179; octacosyl = 3193; nonacosyl = 3207;triacontyl = 3221; triacontyl = 3235; tetracontyl = 3249; pentacosyl = 3263; hexacosyl = 3277; heptacosyl = 3291; octacosyl = 3305; nonacosyl = 3319;triacontyl = 3333; triacontyl = 3347; tetracontyl = 3361; pentacosyl = 3375; hexacosyl = 3389; heptacosyl = 3403; octacosyl = 3417; nonacosyl = 3431;triacontyl = 3445; triacontyl = 3459; tetracontyl = 3473; pentacosyl = 3487; hexacosyl = 3501; heptacosyl = 3515; octacosyl = 3529; nonacosyl = 3543;triacontyl = 3557; triacontyl = 3571; tetracontyl = 3585; pentacosyl = 3599; hexacosyl = 3613; heptacosyl = 3627; octacosyl = 3641; nonacosyl = 3655;triacontyl = 3669; triacontyl = 3683; tetracontyl = 3697; pentacosyl = 3711; hexacosyl = 3725; heptacosyl = 3739; octacosyl = 3753; nonacosyl = 3767;triacontyl = 3781; triacontyl = 3795; tetracontyl = 3809; pentacosyl = 3823; hexacosyl = 3837; heptacosyl = 3851; octacosyl = 3865; nonacosyl = 3879;triacontyl = 3893; triacontyl = 3907; tetracontyl = 3921; pentacosyl = 3935; hexacosyl = 3949; heptacosyl = 3963; octacosyl = 3977; nonacosyl = 3991;triacontyl = 4005; triacontyl = 4019; tetracontyl = 4033; pentacosyl = 4047; hexacosyl = 4061; heptacosyl = 4075; octacosyl = 4089; nonacosyl = 4103;triacontyl = 4117; triacontyl = 4131; tetracontyl = 4145; pentacosyl = 4159; hexacosyl = 4173; heptacosyl = 4187; octacosyl = 4201; nonacosyl = 4215;triacontyl = 4229; triacontyl = 4243; tetracontyl = 4257; pentacosyl = 4271; hexacosyl = 4285; heptacosyl = 4299; octacosyl = 4313; nonacosyl = 4327;triacontyl = 4341; triacontyl = 4355; tetracontyl = 4369; pentacosyl = 4383; hexacosyl = 4397; heptacosyl = 4411; octacosyl = 4425; nonacosyl = 4439;triacontyl = 4453; triacontyl = 4467; tetracontyl = 4481; pentacosyl = 4495; hexacosyl = 4509; heptacosyl = 4523; octacosyl = 4537; nonacosyl = 4551;triacontyl = 4565; triacontyl = 4579; tetracontyl = 4593; pentacosyl = 4607; hexacosyl = 4621; heptacosyl = 4635; octacosyl = 4649; nonacosyl = 4663;triacontyl = 4677; triacontyl = 4691; tetracontyl = 4705; pentacosyl = 4719; hexacosyl = 4733; heptacosyl = 4747; octacosyl = 4761; nonacosyl = 4775;triacontyl = 4789; triacontyl = 4803; tetracontyl = 4817; pentacosyl = 4831; hexacosyl = 4845; heptacosyl = 4859; octacosyl = 4873; nonacosyl = 4887;triacontyl = 4901; triacontyl = 4915; tetracontyl = 4929; pentacosyl = 4943; hexacosyl = 4957; heptacosyl = 4971; octacosyl = 4985; nonacosyl = 4999;triacontyl = 5013; triacontyl = 5027; tetracontyl = 5041; pentacosyl = 5055; hexacosyl = 5069; heptacosyl = 5083; octacosyl = 5097; nonacosyl = 5111;triacontyl = 5125; triacontyl = 5139; tetracontyl = 5153; pentacosyl = 5167; hexacosyl = 5181; heptacosyl = 5195; octacosyl = 5209; nonacosyl = 5223;triacontyl = 5237; triacontyl = 5251; tetracontyl = 5265; pentacosyl = 5279; hexacosyl = 5293; heptacosyl = 5307; octacosyl = 5321; nonacosyl = 5335;triacontyl = 5349; triacontyl = 5363; tetracontyl = 5377; pentacosyl = 5391; hexacosyl = 5405; heptacosyl = 5419; octacosyl = 5433; nonacosyl = 5447;triacontyl = 5461; triacontyl = 5475; tetracontyl = 5489; pentacosyl = 5503; hexacosyl = 5517; heptacosyl = 5531; octacosyl = 5545; nonacosyl = 5559;triacontyl = 5573; triacontyl = 5587; tetracontyl = 5601; pentacosyl = 5615; hexacosyl = 5629; heptacosyl = 5643; octacosyl = 5657; nonacosyl = 5671;triacontyl = 5685; triacontyl = 5699; tetracontyl = 5713; pentacosyl = 5727; hexacosyl = 5741; heptacosyl = 5755; octacosyl = 5769; nonacosyl = 5783;triacontyl = 5797; triacontyl = 5811; tetracontyl = 5825; pentacosyl = 5839; hexacosyl = 5853; heptacosyl = 5867; octacosyl = 5881; nonacosyl = 5895;triacontyl = 5909; triacontyl = 5923; tetracontyl = 5937; pentacosyl = 5951; hexacosyl = 5965; heptacosyl = 5979; octacosyl = 5993; nonacosyl = 6007;triacontyl = 6021; triacontyl = 6035; tetracontyl = 6049; pentacosyl = 6063; hexacosyl = 6077; heptacosyl = 6091; octacosyl = 6105; nonacosyl = 6119;triacontyl = 6133; triacontyl = 6147; tetracontyl = 6161; pentacosyl = 6175; hexacosyl = 6189; heptacosyl = 6203; octacosyl = 6217; nonacosyl = 6231;triacontyl = 6245; triacontyl = 6259; tetracontyl = 6273; pentacosyl = 6287; hexacosyl = 6301; heptacosyl = 6315; octacosyl = 6329; nonacosyl = 6343;triacontyl = 6357; triacontyl = 6371; tetracontyl = 6385; pentacosyl = 6399; hexacosyl = 6413; heptacosyl = 6427; octacosyl = 6441; nonacosyl = 6455;triacontyl = 6469; triacontyl = 6483; tetracontyl = 6497; pentacosyl = 6511; hexacosyl = 6525; heptacosyl = 6539; octacosyl = 6553; nonacosyl = 6567;triacontyl = 6581; triacontyl = 6595; tetracontyl = 6609; pentacosyl = 6623; hexacosyl = 6637; heptacosyl = 6651; octacosyl = 6665; nonacosyl = 6679;triacontyl = 6693; triacontyl = 6707; tetracontyl = 6721; pentacosyl = 6735; hexacosyl = 6749; heptacosyl = 6763; octacosyl = 6777; nonacosyl = 6791;triacontyl = 6805; triacontyl = 6819; tetracontyl = 6833; pentacosyl = 6847; hexacosyl = 6861; heptacosyl = 6875; octacosyl = 6889; nonacosyl = 6903;triacontyl = 6917; triacontyl = 6931; tetracontyl = 6945; pentacosyl = 6959; hexacosyl = 6973; heptacosyl = 6987; octacosyl = 7001; nonacosyl = 7015;triacontyl = 7029; triacontyl = 7043; tetracontyl = 7057; pentacosyl = 7071; hexacosyl = 7085; heptacosyl = 7099; octacosyl = 7113; nonacosyl = 7127;triacontyl = 7141; triacontyl = 7155; tetracontyl = 7169; pentacosyl = 7183; hexacosyl = 7197; heptacosyl = 7211; octacosyl = 7225; nonacosyl = 7239;triacontyl = 7253; triacontyl = 7267; tetracontyl = 7281; pentacosyl = 7295; hexacosyl = 7309; heptacosyl = 7323; octacosyl = 7337; nonacosyl = 7351;triacontyl = 7365; triacontyl = 7379; tetracontyl = 7393; pentacosyl = 7407; hexacosyl = 7421; heptacosyl = 7435; octacosyl = 7449; nonacosyl = 7463;triacontyl = 7477; triacontyl = 7491; tetracontyl = 7505; pentacosyl = 7519; hexacosyl = 7533; heptacosyl = 7547; octacosyl = 7561; nonacosyl = 7575;triacontyl = 7589; triacontyl = 7603; tetracontyl = 7617; pentacosyl = 7631; hexacosyl = 7645; heptacosyl = 7659; octacosyl = 7673; nonacosyl = 7687;triacontyl = 7701; triacontyl = 7715; tetracontyl = 7729; pentacosyl = 7743; hexacosyl = 7757; heptacosyl = 7771; octacosyl = 7785; nonacosyl = 7799;triacontyl = 7813; triacontyl = 7827; tetracontyl = 7841; pentacosyl = 7855; hexacosyl = 7869; heptacosyl = 7883; octacosyl = 7897; nonacosyl = 7911;triacontyl = 7925; triacontyl = 7939; tetracontyl = 7953; pentacosyl = 7967; hexacosyl = 7981; heptacosyl = 7995; octacosyl = 8009; nonacosyl = 8023;triacontyl = 8037; triacontyl = 8051; tetracontyl = 8065; pentacosyl = 8079; hexacosyl = 8093; heptacosyl = 8107; octacosyl = 8121; nonacosyl = 8135;triacontyl = 8149; triacontyl = 8163; tetracontyl = 8177; pentacosyl = 8191; hexacosyl = 8205; heptacosyl = 8219; octacosyl = 8233; nonacosyl = 8247;triacontyl = 8261; triacontyl = 8275; tetracontyl = 8289; pentacosyl = 8303; hexacosyl = 8317; heptacosyl = 8331; octacosyl = 8345; nonacosyl = 8359;triacontyl = 8373; triacontyl = 8387; tetracontyl = 8401; pentacosyl = 8415; hexacosyl = 8429; heptacosyl = 8443; octacosyl = 8457; nonacosyl = 8471;triacontyl = 8485; triacontyl = 8499; tetracontyl = 8513; pentacosyl = 8527; hexacosyl = 8541; heptacosyl = 8555; octacosyl = 8569; nonacosyl = 8583;triacontyl = 8597; triacontyl = 8611; tetracontyl = 8625; pentacosyl = 8639; hexacosyl = 8653; heptacosyl = 8667; octacosyl = 8681; nonacosyl = 8695;triacontyl = 8709; triacontyl = 8723; tetracontyl = 8737; pentacosyl = 8751; hexacosyl = 8765; heptacosyl = 8779; octacosyl = 8793; nonacosyl = 8807;triacontyl = 8821; triacontyl = 8835; tetracontyl = 8849; pentacosyl = 8863; hexacosyl = 8877; heptacosyl = 8891; octacosyl = 8905; nonacosyl = 8919;triacontyl = 8933; triacontyl = 8947; tetracontyl = 8961; pentacosyl = 8975; hexacosyl = 8989; heptacosyl = 9003; octacosyl = 9017; nonacosyl = 9031;triacontyl = 9045; triacontyl = 9059; tetracontyl = 9073; pentacosyl = 9087; hexacosyl = 9101; heptacosyl = 9115; octacosyl = 9129; nonacosyl = 9143;triacontyl = 9157; triacontyl = 9171; tetracontyl = 9185; pentacosyl = 9199; hexacosyl = 9213; heptacosyl = 9227; octacosyl = 9241; nonacosyl = 9255;triacontyl = 9269; triacontyl = 9283; tetracontyl = 9297; pentacosyl = 9311; hexacosyl = 9325; heptacosyl = 9339; octacosyl = 9353; nonacosyl = 9367;triacontyl = 9381; triacontyl = 9395; tetracontyl = 9409; pentacosyl = 9423; hexacosyl = 9437; heptacosyl = 9451; octacosyl = 9465; nonacosyl = 9479;triacontyl = 9493; triacontyl = 9507; tetracontyl = 9521; pentacosyl = 9535; hexacosyl = 9549; heptacosyl = 9563; octacosyl = 9577; nonacosyl = 9591;triacontyl = 9605; triacontyl = 9619; tetracontyl = 9633; pentacosyl = 9647; hexacosyl = 9661; heptacosyl = 9675; octacosyl = 9689; nonacosyl = 9703;triacontyl = 9717; triacontyl = 9731; tetracontyl = 9745; pentacosyl = 9759; hexacosyl = 9773; heptacosyl = 9787; octacosyl = 9801; nonacosyl = 9815;triacontyl = 9829; triacontyl = 9843; tetracontyl = 9857; pentacosyl = 9871; hexacosyl = 9885; heptacosyl = 9899; octacosyl = 9913; nonacosyl = 9927;triacontyl = 9941; triacontyl = 9955; tetracontyl = 9969; pentacosyl = 9983; hexacosyl = 9997; heptacosyl = 10011; octacosyl = 10025; nonacosyl = 10039;triacontyl = 10053; triacontyl = 10067; tetracontyl = 10081; pentacosyl = 10095; hexacosyl = 10109; heptacosyl = 10123; octacosyl = 10137; nonacosyl = 10151;triacontyl = 10165; triacontyl = 10179; tetracontyl = 10193; pentacosyl = 10207; hexacosyl = 10221; heptacosyl = 10235; octacosyl = 10249; nonacosyl = 10263;triacontyl = 10277; triacontyl = 10291; tetracontyl = 10305; pentacosyl = 10319; hexacosyl = 10333; heptacosyl = 10347; octacosyl = 10361; nonacosyl = 10375;triacontyl = 10389; triacontyl = 10403; tetracontyl = 10417; pentacosyl = 10431; hexacosyl = 10445; heptacosyl = 10459; octacosyl = 10473; nonacosyl = 10487;triacontyl = 10501; triacontyl = 10515; tetracontyl = 10529; pentacosyl = 10543; hexacosyl = 10557; heptacosyl = 10571; octacosyl = 10585; nonacosyl = 10599;triacontyl = 10613; triacontyl = 10627; tetracontyl = 10641; pentacosyl = 10655; hexacosyl = 10669; heptacosyl = 10683; octacosyl = 10697; nonacosyl = 10711;triacontyl = 10725; triacontyl = 10739; tetracontyl = 10753; pentacosyl = 10767; hexacosyl = 10781; heptacosyl = 10795; octacosyl = 10809; nonacosyl = 10823;triacontyl = 10837; triacontyl = 10851; tetracontyl = 10865; pentacosyl = 10879; hexacosyl = 10893; heptacosyl = 10907; octacosyl = 10921; nonacosyl = 10935;triacontyl = 10949; triacontyl = 10963; tetracontyl = 10977; pentacosyl = 10991; hexacosyl = 11005; heptacosyl = 11019; octacosyl = 11033; nonacosyl = 11047;triacontyl = 11061; triacontyl = 11075; tetracontyl = 11089; pentacosyl = 11103; hexacosyl = 11117; heptacosyl = 11131; octacosyl = 11145; nonacosyl = 11159;triacontyl = 11173; triacontyl = 11187; tetracontyl = 11201; pentacosyl = 11215; hexacosyl = 11229; heptacosyl = 11243; octacosyl = 11257; nonacosyl = 11271;triacontyl = 11285; triacontyl = 11299; tetracontyl = 11313; pentacosyl = 11327; hexacosyl = 11341; heptacosyl = 11355; octacosyl = 11369; nonacosyl = 11383;triacontyl = 11397; triacontyl = 11411; tetracontyl = 11425; pentacosyl = 11439; hexacosyl = 11453; heptacosyl = 11467; octacosyl = 11481; nonacosyl = 11495;triacontyl = 11509; triacontyl = 11523; tetracontyl = 11537; pentacosyl = 11551; hexacosyl = 11565; heptacosyl = 11579; octacosyl = 11593; nonacosyl = 11607;triacontyl = 11621; triacontyl = 11635; tetracontyl = 11649; pentacosyl = 11663; hexacosyl = 11677; heptacosyl = 11691; octacosyl = 11705; nonacosyl = 11719;triacontyl = 11733; triacontyl = 11747; tetracontyl = 11761; pentacosyl = 11775; hexacosyl = 11789; heptacosyl = 11803; octacosyl = 11817; nonacosyl = 11831;triacontyl = 11845; triacontyl = 11859; tetracontyl = 11873; pentacosyl = 11887; hexacosyl = 11901; heptacosyl = 11915; octacosyl = 11929; nonacosyl = 11943;triacontyl = 11957; triacontyl = 11971; tetracontyl = 11985; pentacosyl = 11999; hexacosyl = 12013; heptacosyl = 12027; octacosyl = 12041; nonacosyl = 12055;triacontyl = 12069; triacontyl = 12083; tetracontyl = 12097; pentacosyl = 12111; hexacosyl = 12125; heptacosyl = 12139; octacosyl = 12153; nonacosyl = 12167;triacontyl = 12181; triacontyl = 12195; tetracontyl = 12209; pentacosyl = 12223; hexacosyl = 12237; heptacosyl = 12251; octacosyl = 12265; nonacosyl = 12279;triacontyl = 12293; triacontyl = 12307; tetracontyl = 12321; pentacosyl = 12335; hexacosyl = 12349; heptacosyl = 12363; octacosyl = 12377; nonacosyl = 12391;triacontyl = 12405; triacontyl = 12419; tetracontyl = 12433; pentacosyl = 12447; hexacosyl = 12461; heptacosyl = 12475; octacosyl = 12489; nonacosyl = 12503;triacontyl = 12517; triacontyl = 12531; tetracontyl = 12545; pentacosyl = 12559; hexacosyl = 12573; heptacosyl = 12587; octacosyl = 12601; nonacosyl = 12615;triacontyl = 12629; triacontyl = 12643; tetracontyl = 12657; pentacosyl = 12671; hexacosyl = 12685; heptacosyl = 12699; octacosyl = 12713; nonacosyl = 12727;triacontyl = 12741; triacontyl = 12755; tetracontyl = 12769; pentacosyl = 12783; hexacosyl = 12797; heptacosyl = 12811; octacosyl = 12825; nonacosyl = 12839;triacontyl = 12853; triacontyl = 12867; tetracontyl = 12881; pentacosyl = 12895; hexacosyl = 12909; heptacosyl = 12923; octacosyl = 12937; nonacosyl = 12951;triacontyl = 12965; triacontyl = 12979; tetracontyl = 12993; pentacosyl = 13007; hexacosyl = 13021; heptacosyl = 13035; octacosyl = 13049; nonacosyl = 13063;triacontyl = 13077; triacontyl = 13091; tetracontyl = 13105; pentacosyl = 13119; hexacosyl = 13133; heptacosyl = 13147; octacosyl = 13161; nonacosyl = 13175;triacontyl = 13189; triacontyl = 13203; tetracontyl = 13217; pentacosyl = 13231; hexacosyl = 13245; heptacosyl = 13259; octacosyl = 13273; nonacosyl = 13287;triacontyl = 13301; triacontyl = 13315; tetracontyl = 13329; pentacosyl = 13343; hexacosyl = 13357; heptacosyl = 13371; octacosyl = 13385; nonacosyl = 13399;triacontyl = 13413; triacontyl = 13427; tetracontyl = 13441; pentacosyl = 13455; hexacosyl = 13469; heptacosyl = 13483; octacosyl = 13497; nonacosyl = 13511;triacontyl = 13525; triacontyl = 13539; tetracontyl = 13553; pentacosyl = 13567; hexacosyl = 13581; heptacosyl = 13595; octacosyl = 13609; nonacosyl = 13623;triacontyl = 13637; triacontyl = 13651; tetracontyl = 13665; pentacosyl = 13679; hexacosyl = 13693; heptacosyl = 13707; octacosyl = 13721; nonacosyl = 13735;triacontyl = 13749; triacontyl = 13763; tetracontyl = 13777; pentacosyl = 13791; hexacosyl = 13805; heptacosyl = 13819; octacosyl = 13833; nonacosyl = 13847;triacontyl = 13861; triacontyl = 13875; tetracontyl = 13889; pentacosyl = 13903; hexacosyl = 13917; heptacosyl = 13931; octacosyl = 13945; nonacosyl = 13959;triacontyl = 13973; triacontyl = 13987; tetracontyl = 14001; pentacosyl = 14015; hexacosyl = 14029; heptacosyl = 14043; octacosyl = 14057; nonacosyl = 14071;triacontyl = 14085; triacontyl = 14099; tetracontyl = 14113; pentacosyl = 14127; hexacosyl = 14141; heptacosyl = 14155; octacosyl = 14169; nonacosyl = 14183;triacontyl = 14197; triacontyl = 14211; tetracontyl = 14225; pentacosyl = 14239; hexacosyl = 14253; heptacosyl = 14267; octacosyl = 14281; nonacosyl = 14295;triacontyl = 14309; triacontyl = 14323; tetracontyl = 14337; pentacosyl = 14351; hexacosyl = 14365; heptacosyl = 14379; octacosyl = 14393; nonacosyl = 14407;triacontyl = 14421; triacontyl = 14435; tetracontyl = 14449; pentacosyl = 14463; hexacosyl = 14477; heptacosyl = 14491; octacosyl = 14505; nonacosyl = 14519;triacontyl = 14533; triacontyl = 14547; tetracontyl = 14561; pentacosyl = 14575; hexacosyl = 14589; heptacosyl = 14603; octacosyl = 14617; nonacosyl = 14631;triacontyl = 14645; triacontyl = 14659; tetracontyl = 14673; pentacosyl = 14687; hexacosyl = 14701; heptacosyl = 14715; octacosyl = 14729; nonacosyl = 14743;triacontyl = 14757; triacontyl = 14771; tetracontyl = 14785; pentacosyl = 14799; hexacosyl = 14813; heptacosyl = 14827; octacosyl = 14841; nonacosyl = 14855;triacontyl = 14869; triacontyl = 14883; tetracontyl = 14897; pentacosyl = 14911; hexacosyl = 14925; heptacosyl = 14939; octacosyl = 14953; nonacosyl = 14967;triacontyl = 14981; triacontyl = 14995; tetracontyl = 15009; pentacosyl = 15023; hexacosyl = 15037; heptacosyl = 15051; octacosyl = 15065; nonacosyl = 15079;triacontyl = 15093; triacontyl = 15107; tetracontyl = 15121; pentacosyl = 15135; hexacosyl = 15149; heptacosyl = 15163; octacosyl = 15177; nonacosyl = 15191;triacontyl = 15205; triacontyl = 15219; tetracontyl = 15233; pentacosyl = 15247; hexacosyl = 15261; heptacosyl = 15275; octacosyl = 15289; nonacosyl = 15303;triacontyl = 15317; triacontyl = 15331; tetracontyl = 15345; pentacosyl = 15359; hexacosyl = 15373; heptacosyl = 15387; octacosyl = 15401; nonacosyl = 15415;triacontyl = 15429; triacontyl = 15443; tetracontyl = 15457; pentacosyl = 15471; hexacosyl = 15485; heptacosyl = 15499; octacosyl = 15513; nonacosyl = 15527;triacontyl = 15541; triacontyl = 15555; tetracontyl = 15569; pentacosyl = 15583; hexacosyl = 15597; heptacosyl = 15611; octacosyl = 15625; nonacosyl = 15639;triacontyl = 15653; triacontyl = 15667; tetracontyl = 15681; pentacosyl = 15695; hexacosyl = 15709; heptacosyl = 15723; octacosyl = 15737; nonacosyl = 15751;triacontyl = 15765; triacontyl = 15779; tetracontyl = 15793; pentacosyl = 15807; hexacosyl = 15821; heptacosyl = 15835; octacosyl = 15849; nonacosyl = 15863;triacontyl = 15877; triacontyl = 15891; tetracontyl = 15905; pentacosyl = 15919; hexacosyl = 15933; heptacosyl = 15947; octacosyl = 15961; nonacosyl = 15975;triacontyl = 15989; triacontyl = 16003; tetracontyl = 16017; pentacosyl = 16031; hexacosyl = 16045; heptacosyl = 16059; octacosyl = 16073; nonacosyl = 16087;triacontyl = 16101; triacontyl = 16115; tetracontyl = 16129; pentacosyl

This is just what has happened in the field of taxonomy, where the original approach is inevitably descriptive, because scientists set out to describe as fully & accurately as possible the variety of organisms & the phenomena which they exhibit. ~~This approach~~ ~~The descriptive approach~~ ~~soon is supplemented by the cognitive, which is~~ This original approach is designed to answer the basic question about what are the facts; though it needs categories as do all kinds of studies, these are rather arbitrarily chosen & hardly need to be more closely defined.

The descriptive approach soon is supplemented by the cognitive, which is focused around the question of grouping that mirrors the patterns that an assemblage of organisms has ~~together~~ in common, & what distinct types there are at various levels of characterization. This leads to classification of organisms in a hierarchical system of categories which have to be more or less exactly defined, although the degree of arbitrariness cannot be avoided.

When the cognitive method becomes connected with the theory of evolution, it soon requires still a new procedure, an approach which is best termed differential analysis. This seeks to clarify the question about the cause of differences between the members of a related group & also between the related groups themselves. This, in fact, is the ~~whole~~ ~~method~~ of cytogenetics, making analysis of gene hybridization & studying the mechanism of cell division. It is firmly associated with studies of the interrelationship & total patterns of each system of detectable components & the history of evolutionary divergence & its causes. ~~It goes without saying that this treatment~~ It is from this treatment combined with cognitive morphology that we have been able to conclude that

any the wheatgrasses

Of the 24 higher recognized, ~~it~~ <sup>two</sup> might have formed autoplaid series, <sup>one</sup> even up to the decaploid level. Only ~~the~~ <sup>public</sup> higher have been found to ~~be~~ <sup>have</sup> evolved into a situation that Zohary & Feldman (1962) termed pivoted, so they have taken part in alloplaid evolution, ~~just~~ <sup>not</sup> within the so-called annual group or the strictly degeared subtribe Triticeae, ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~others~~ <sup>six</sup> in the perennial group which has been called Elgyniaeae, ~~and~~ ~~just~~

→ 11b.

It is evident that ~~at~~ <sup>several</sup> ~~for~~ those of us who resist <sup>changes for</sup> see remain or another will <sup>feel</sup> ~~hard~~ <sup>begin</sup> to conclude that these assertions are nice additions to knowledge ~~which they may, but really, they will not, be ignored.~~ <sup>which they may, but really, they will not, be ignored.</sup> Others may agree with Krause (1898), ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> take the evidence of crossability as a reason to unite the entire complex or tribe in a single genus, although few may be inclined to find that logical or will or even satisfactory from any point of view. Still others may suggest a partial ~~acceptance~~ <sup>acceptance</sup> of the data for the consolidation of some already recognized genera [whereas for others they could be ignored, at least for the purpose of the discussion] ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~rather~~ <sup>rather</sup> inclined to regard this as the best opportunity ever to ~~demonstrate~~ <sup>demonstrate</sup> (use this evidence to) demonstrate the applicability of the generic concept as the basis of generic classification, ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~an~~ <sup>an</sup> ~~evolutionary~~ <sup>evolutionary</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~kind~~ <sup>kind</sup> ~~for~~ <sup>for</sup> ~~that~~ <sup>that</sup> ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~recommended~~ <sup>recommended</sup> for all existing studies, ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~especially~~ <sup>especially</sup> ~~for~~ <sup>for</sup> ~~all~~ <sup>all</sup> ~~applied~~ <sup>applied</sup> ~~investigations~~ <sup>investigations</sup> of which many of us have spoken much but rarely had ~~such~~ <sup>such</sup> ~~so~~ <sup>so</sup> ~~many~~ <sup>many</sup> ~~possibilities~~ <sup>possibilities</sup> to practice with certainty.

The category of genus has ~~not~~ <sup>not</sup> been defined in various ways since Darwin presented his single definition that said. Genus comes est naturalis. The most common modern definition seems to require that the species of a genus should be so characterized that they <sup>could</sup> have evolved, by linear branching, from the same protospecies. As every definition, this could be twisted in various ways, but I believe ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> most ~~logical~~ <sup>logical</sup> it to be most logical to understand it as a request of including in a genus not only species characterized by the same basic chromosome set, but also only those that are characterized by the same or very similar generic constitution. If that idea is accepted, then ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~any~~ <sup>any</sup> ~~concept~~ <sup>concept</sup>





group of the wheatgrasses that is characterized by a single  
 haplome needs to be accepted as a genus in its own right.  
 As a matter of fact such a designation was recently advocated  
 by the wheat geneticist Mackay <sup>(1963)</sup> (when revising the genera  
~~in the Triticeae~~) for the Eriosema wheat. ~~It was also thought that~~  
~~by Choucravich (1964) in connection with his studies~~ The same idea,  
 with the addition of proposing that groups produced by different  
~~complexes~~ allopoloid complexes of introgressive haplomes also be  
 regarded as distinct genera, was ~~later~~ contemplated by Choucravich (1966)  
 in connection with his thorough studies - Elygus, though he hesitated  
 to propose it in view of the fact that some additional morphological  
 & hybridization evidence still was not available. That evidence has  
 since been amply added so that ~~there seems to be left out~~  
~~the classical resistance~~ the only logical resistance <sup>was for an splitting of the Elygus-Tritic complex</sup> must be  
 based on an inherent conservatism, <sup>probably</sup> which changes with new genetics,  
 in taxonomy & genetics as long as in other sciences, ~~as for the~~  
~~inherent conservatism~~.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

~~This leads to the conclusion that <sup>it is logical</sup> to propose, ~~that~~ to follow Mackay in accepting generic status for  
 each ~~group~~ of haplomic groups, be it large or only of a single species,  
 & also for each of the ~~distinct~~ ~~haplomic~~ haplomic complexes of  
 allopoloids. This proposal would make no changes in most of the genera  
 accepted by Nees & modified by Tjeder, ~~and~~ and result  
 in strengthening of the designation of genera as Amelopyrum (T),  
Aryzom s.str. (MV or MNV), Secale ( ), Dasyglossum ( ), Eremopyrum ( ),  
Heterothelium ( ), Hamovardia ( ), Critiloglossum ( ), Taenitellum ( ),  
Herdelymus ( ), Prathyrostachys ( ), Agropyron s.str. ( ), Logmus (JN),  
Festucopyrum (F), & Elygus (HS).~~

~~The genus~~

Excepting the

It would take too long to review the influence that the acceptance of the generic concept as a generic designation in the wheatgrasses would have on the ~~annual group of Triticaceae~~

For the sake of time I must refrain from detailed discussion of the status of ~~varieties~~ ~~varieties~~ of the taxa that are characterized by heights that have taken no ~~part in the~~ ~~evolution~~ additional part in the evolution of the complex and instead only mention briefly the effects that this concept will have — the ~~presently~~ ~~classification~~ classification of the principal heights and of the taxonomy of the polyploid complexes. (The essential principal heights of the annual wheatgrasses are the height A, which is characteristic of the so-called Einkorn or monosecon wheat; at the generic level its current name is Nivona, ~~that~~ of which ~~is~~ the common species is diploid, — less well known are ~~the~~ autotetraploid. Another principal height is B, which is typical of the genus Stiparia, which originally was described as a subspecies of Trigonon. ~~The third principal height is~~ ~~it~~ ~~includes~~ ~~seven~~ ~~the~~ ~~all~~ ~~of~~ ~~them~~ ~~being~~ ~~classified~~ ~~as~~ ~~subspecies~~ ~~of~~ ~~a~~ ~~single~~ ~~species~~. The third annual principal height is D, which is characteristic of the genus Patriopsis — which has been classified as the species tanchei (or simply as the species spersonii) of the ~~the~~ monotypic section (Vestibula of Trigonon). Two of these heights, A and D, have united to form the ~~the~~ ~~monosecon~~ ~~wheat~~ single species and two subspecies of the Eimer or monosecon wheat with their ~~parent~~ name the 5000 cultivars, ~~and these two heights and the D height are the~~ ~~of~~ ~~Eimer~~ ~~wheat~~ ~~plus~~ ~~the~~ ~~D~~ ~~height~~ ~~produced~~ ~~the~~ ~~important~~ ~~Dinkel~~ ~~or~~ ~~bread~~ ~~wheat~~ ~~and~~ ~~its~~ ~~six~~ ~~subspecies~~ ~~which~~ ~~are~~ ~~known~~ ~~to~~ ~~comprise~~ ~~over~~ ~~35000~~ ~~cultivars~~.

The ~~grass~~ ~~genus~~ Seale, the rye, is characterized by a height of its own that has not taken part in further evolution though it has recently found allopolyploids that hybridize with wheat, by aid of glut breaders. Other annual ~~non-principal~~ heights need not to be mentioned since their distinction has rarely been doubted. The genus Hordeum, in the usual circumscription, ~~that includes both the~~ ~~however~~, has been found to include, in the annual cultivated group, the genus Hordeum in its strict sense,



The hedge I, which is ~~not~~ ~~typical~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~group~~ has not taken part in further evolution, & the hedge II, which is typical of the meso-eurasiatic barley, which are more correctly classified in the genus Criterium; that hedge has been very active in the evolution of other perennial groups ~~will be seen~~

Well-known genera that are characterized by a single hedge each that have not taken part in further evolution, are the rye, or Secale, Dasyglossum, Evraglossum, Heterothelium, Hansradia, Criterium, ~~Agropyron~~, & Agropyron s. str., all naturally distributed in the mountains & mountains of the Middle East. The genus Thalictrum, or barley, also is involved in parallel action, whereas its relative, Criterium, or the wild barley, is characterized by the parallel hedge II, which has actively contributed to ~~the~~ allopolyploid evolution that led to genomic development. One of its offspring genera is the monotypic Evragium Hurdelymum with the genomic constitution HT, the T being ~~derived~~ from the ancestral genus Taraxacum of western Asia & eastern Europe. ~~Another~~ ~~offspring~~ ~~of~~ ~~it~~ its essential offspring, with the S-genus of the old genus Pseudoroegneria of South Europe & Asia & North America is the genus Elymus which includes about 200 taxa distributed all over the sub-tropical & sub-arctic zones, ~~with~~ ~~a~~ ~~range~~ Sierra del Sierra del Sierra, North & East Africa, Java, Australia & New Zealand. Its genomic constitution is HS, & it comprises, ~~from~~ ~~the~~ ~~genus~~ genus Juncus in addition to the ~~the~~ restricted diverse genus Elymus, also groups that until recently have been recognized as the genera Anthus, Chrysops, Cochlospora, Hystrix, Rozmaria, Stenactis & Parthenoclema.

The genus Elytrigia, which Nash (1934) recognized as a split out of the then conventional Elymus is delimited by Bartholomew, has proven to be a complex made up of five distinct ~~type~~ allopolyploid or autoallopolyploid (hedge) taxa of which three hedges are parallel, or E characteristic of Dasyglossum, which comprises the former Elymus ~~group~~ Agropyron claytonii group, N that is typical of Thalictrum or the ~~the~~ former Agropyron set. sinense, & S of Pseudoroegneria mentioned earlier. There are also two small tetraploid genera, Pseudolytrigia, ~~with~~

the lychnes E & N, & Elytrigales with the lychnes E & S, which may lead to the hexagonal Elytrigae s. str. with its E, N & S lychnes. Also the demigener of Elytrigae remains tentative because too little is still known about its many Arctic species of the section thyalogoides, but its other sections, Elytrigae, Trichophorae, Loliorides & Cygestras ~~are~~ all include the E, N & S lychnes & seem to be reasonably well defined.

Legum.

~~The remaining~~  
 Then it remains to mention the group which includes and the species which diverges, such Elytrigae arvensis. In morphological grounds also, Hochstetter (1848) had ~~not~~ distinguished it as the genus Legum.

Then it remains to mention ~~the~~ two <sup>taxa</sup> ~~groups~~ that both are represented on the

No or few hybrids between *hybrids* of *amara* & *peruviana*?

But possible ~~between *peruviana* & *amara*~~ hybrids of wheat and those with S or N of the parents?

Also between barley & *Lagopus* & *Elymus*; or *Criticaria*; when one hybrid is the one on both.

*Lagopus* x *Elytrigia*, *Elytrigia* x *Triticum*.

hybrid type: method invented by Leavitt, little used & much misunderstood by those who have accepted it as - additional morphological ground, not based on 2-3 characters.

If we at this stage summarize the results from the hybrid type and gene analysis as far as their effects - the ~~former~~ confused taxonomy of the wheatgrasses are concerned, the first observation must be that they clearly ~~confirm~~ contradict the still widely accepted morphologically based classifications of this variety into wide genera as was advocated by Smith & Hitchcock about a century ago, since these assemblages are genetically & karyologically so variable that they could not have evolved from a single original type by only <sup>theoretical</sup> ~~linear~~ branching. At the same time, however, these observations must ~~be~~ interpreted as contradictory to one of the splitting made by Nevins, & as an evidence of that ~~one~~ even one of the genera he accepted still remained much too inclusive. ~~Let us~~ Let us look at the individual cases systematically & begin with the youngest group & most restricted in distribution, the annual genera of the *Triticum*:

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

*hybrids* - *senii*.

Soon after the discovery of *cherson* & their names it became evident to those who worked with them, that they are of - utmost importance for evolution & thus taxonomy & plant breeding. Still, after about a century, there are ~~scarcely~~ *scarcely* *Hydrocotyle*, who have met to nothing in taxonomy, who ~~gabble~~ *gabble* about - - - & taxonomists, & other floristic botanists.

Hybrid not constant more than other biological phenomena.

There are those who expect to be able to find the exact hybrid that went into the making of *senii* - wheat 10,000 years old, & seem to be astonished that it is not found in the material they collect by chance in one locality in the Near East. Although *cherson* & hybrids are among the most constant objects on earth, they change at least slightly, & although the hybrids of wheat have clearly changed so little, that they remain essentially identical in all the geographical & karyological tax of wheat, they nevertheless are not exactly identical. ~~These~~ These adjacent & changes are unavoidable because we do not have the absolute truth on which to degree the categories, & become ~~concepts~~ *concepts* are concepts of the categories unavoidably change with increased knowledge. Although we at least try to avoid ~~radical~~ *radical* ~~changes~~ *changes* to contrast drastic some changes by aid of the Code so that correct names never prejudice away though they may shift for a considerable time to a more distinct one whenever the science has to be split.

- 1) *hybrids*.
- 2) *Hydrocotyle*, *senii*.



Orizon.

spiral veins dorsum and primary veins  
Higher  $\gamma/\delta$   
leaves, hypostomy, byllid  
conical at, rounded

The origin of the Triticeae tribe remains unknown, and no paleobotanical remains have yet been discovered, not even pollen grains. Through comparative studies of the morphology of the glumes, however, it is possible to postulate that the earliest members of the tribe were plants with the following characteristics: 1) diploid ~~with~~ with large festucoid chromosomes with at least predominantly median centromeres; 2) <sup>autohexaploid</sup> allohexaploids; 3) the spike with three spikelets at each node; 4) more than two florets in each spikelet; 5) endosperm with single starch grains; 6) distributed in ~~east~~ S and S Arctic mountains. Therefore, it seems reasonable to assume, that this plant may have been similar to ~~the~~ some of the species of <sup>Pseudocerosia</sup> ~~Pseudocerosia~~ <sup>Pseudocerosia</sup> ~~Pseudocerosia~~. Since the distribution of the somewhat advanced *Elymus* species, which is characterized by tetra-hexal octoploidy, shows that it must have been found before the ~~first~~ North Atlantic was found ~~before~~ the middle Tertiary, it is reasonable to suggest that the first diploids ~~were~~ evolved in the early Tertiary or Eocene Cretaceous. From this earliest type evolved the other principal types, ~~but~~ most lately the E and N that are ~~clearly~~ clearly related, the others of have a connection with S — one side and U and C? on the other.

1) *Lycopodium x Secale*: *Distichlis* 1559 (Wander)

L. x

*A. juncea* x *Lycopodium* (-)  
- x *Lycopodium*

*Lycopodium* x *A. juncea*

L

Conspicuous = positive changes: X + 10X.

Terminology -

It is convenient to base the study of relationships of taxa on ~~merits~~ the characteristics of meiosis in hybrids combined to the concept of the genome, an approach that has been especially successful in ~~the~~ investigations of wheats & their relatives, ~~first~~ first carried out by Ullrich ( ) & his associates. That method, termed genome-analysis by Ullrich (1930), is based on the observation, first made by Rosenby (1909) on Drosophila, that in triploid hybrids ( $3x$ ) <sup>which are all ~~triploid~~  $4x$</sup>  between a tetraploid, & ~~the~~ one of its putative diploid parents, ( $2x$ ), the chromosomes at meiosis roughly produce  $2x$  bivalents &  $x$  univalents, presumably because homologous chromosomes pair, leaving unpaired the chromosomes of the ~~one~~ set lacking partners.

Cytological & terminal: Rose

Cytological & terminal: Patton





Green algae - interpretation of structure - d.

and his co-workers studying the evolution of plants and their relatives, and later applied to studies of other plant groups and their relationships by various workers, notably Stubbins and his students and associates ( ),

Canderson ( ), Hansen & Rasmussen..... Dewey.... Dvořák....

~~That method~~ That method is based on the assumption, first made by Rosebury (1909)



Studies on polyploids & their diploid relatives led to the <sup>concept</sup> ~~conception~~ of the ~~same~~ genome (Winkler 1920) to ~~designate~~ <sup>define</sup> the sum total of the genes in which each allele occurs only once, or, in cytological <sup>terms</sup>, the hybrid chromosome complement & the sum total of its genes, irrespective of ploidy. ~~From this~~ At that time several ~~studies~~ <sup>studies</sup> ~~followed~~ <sup>followed</sup> ~~At that time~~ <sup>At that time</sup>, ~~studies~~ <sup>studies</sup> ~~concerning~~ <sup>concerning</sup> ~~hybrids~~ <sup>hybrids</sup> ~~between~~ <sup>between</sup> ~~polyploids~~ <sup>polyploids</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~concept~~ <sup>concept</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~genome~~ <sup>genome</sup>

Anders-

It had become increasingly evident since the studies by Rowley (1909) on Drosophila hybrids, that in hybrids between a polyploid ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> its ~~parent~~ <sup>parents</sup> led to a new interest in ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~hybrids~~ <sup>hybrids</sup> ~~between~~ <sup>between</sup> ~~various~~ <sup>various</sup> ~~levels~~ <sup>levels</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~polyploids~~ <sup>polyploids</sup> ~~but~~ <sup>but</sup> ~~at~~ <sup>at</sup> ~~that~~ <sup>that</sup> ~~time~~ <sup>time</sup>

This concept soon ~~was~~ <sup>was</sup> ~~resulted~~ <sup>resulted</sup> in renewed efforts in the study of ~~polyploid~~ <sup>polyploid</sup> polyploids through hybridization ~~with~~ <sup>with</sup> their putative diploid ancestors, ~~which~~ <sup>which</sup> ~~was~~ <sup>was</sup> ~~at~~ <sup>at</sup> ~~an~~ <sup>an</sup> ~~in~~ <sup>in</sup> ~~game~~ <sup>game</sup> ~~at~~ <sup>at</sup> ~~that~~ <sup>that</sup> ~~time~~ <sup>time</sup>, ~~it~~ <sup>it</sup> ~~led~~ <sup>led</sup> ~~to~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~new~~ <sup>new</sup> ~~methods~~ <sup>methods</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~study~~ <sup>study</sup>. The first ~~was~~ <sup>was</sup> ~~not~~ <sup>not</sup> ~~based~~ <sup>based</sup> ~~on~~ <sup>on</sup> ~~morphological~~ <sup>morphological</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~taxonomical~~ <sup>taxonomical</sup> ~~observations~~ <sup>observations</sup> ~~with~~ <sup>with</sup> ~~cytological~~ <sup>cytological</sup> ~~studies~~ <sup>studies</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~resulted~~ <sup>resulted</sup> in that Hurst (1925), studying the genus Poa, demonstrated that there are five different ~~distinct~~ <sup>distinct</sup> groups of diploid species in this genus, which, ~~in~~ <sup>in</sup> ~~relation~~ <sup>relation</sup> ~~to~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~their~~ <sup>their</sup> ~~cytological~~ <sup>cytological</sup> ~~characteristics~~ <sup>characteristics</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~when~~ <sup>when</sup> ~~hybridized~~ <sup>hybridized</sup>, ~~are~~ <sup>are</sup> ~~each~~ <sup>each</sup> ~~characterized~~ <sup>characterized</sup> ~~by~~ <sup>by</sup> ~~distinct~~ <sup>distinct</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~distinct~~ <sup>distinct</sup> ~~traits~~ <sup>traits</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~combinations~~ <sup>combinations</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~morphological~~ <sup>morphological</sup> ~~characteristics~~ <sup>characteristics</sup>. [By aid of detailed studies of extensive material, Hurst (l.c.)]

Digitized by eGangotri Institute for Cultural Documentation

One of these ~~was~~ <sup>was</sup> ~~not~~ <sup>not</sup> ~~only~~ <sup>only</sup> ~~cytological~~ <sup>cytological</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~morphological~~ <sup>morphological</sup> ~~but~~ <sup>but</sup> ~~also~~ <sup>also</sup> ~~led~~ <sup>led</sup> ~~to~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~observation~~ <sup>observation</sup>, by Hurst (1925) that the genus Poa is composed of five ~~distinct~~ <sup>distinct</sup> diploid species ~~which~~ <sup>which</sup> ~~are~~ <sup>are</sup> ~~seen~~ <sup>seen</sup> ~~in~~ <sup>in</sup> ~~hybrid~~ <sup>hybrid</sup> ~~chromosomes~~ <sup>chromosomes</sup>, ~~called~~ <sup>called</sup> ~~systems~~ <sup>systems</sup>, each set apart by definite morphological traits, and various ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~polyploid~~ <sup>polyploid</sup> combinations of the systems and their characteristics into a series of allopolyploid genomes. The cytological method for hybrid studies was later ~~developed~~ <sup>developed</sup> in considerable detail for studies on introgressive hybridization by Anders (19...) and then applied for identification of one of the basic higher ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~polyploid~~ <sup>polyploid</sup> ~~whorls~~ <sup>whorls</sup> by Sarker & Stebbins (1956).

The other method is cytological ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~experimental~~ <sup>experimental</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~based~~ <sup>based</sup> ~~on~~ <sup>on</sup> ~~studies~~ <sup>studies</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~genotype~~ <sup>genotype</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~species~~ <sup>species</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~a~~ <sup>a</sup> ~~genus~~ <sup>genus</sup>, it was worked out by ~~Leach~~ <sup>Leach</sup> (19...) and his school and led, among others, to the identification of the karyotypes that characterize the various higher ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~polyploid~~ <sup>polyploid</sup> ~~genomes~~ <sup>genomes</sup> of the collective genus Angios, by Choucrack (1960). The third ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~most~~ <sup>most</sup> ~~successful~~ <sup>successful</sup> ~~approach~~ <sup>approach</sup> is that of ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~taxonomical~~ <sup>taxonomical</sup> ~~genome~~ <sup>genome</sup> ~~analysis~~ <sup>analysis</sup> by Wiklund ( )



Pairing between homologous or homeologous chromosomes in diploid hybrids or in ~~auto~~ polyploids is said to be ~~autogamous~~ autogamous if chromosomes from the same parent are involved, but allogamous if they derive from different ~~parents~~ <sup>parents</sup> gametes or parents. ~~These terms are used also for polyploids~~ (Crymald 1922, 1923). The same terms are frequently used in a wider sense for pairing in polyploids, autogamous then meaning pairing between the chromosomes that derive from ~~one~~ one of the parents only, or between ~~the~~ homeologous chromosome sets in polyploids above the tetraploid level, and allogamous denoting pairing between chromosomes deriving from two ~~parents~~ or more parents or belonging to heterochromatid ~~chromosomes~~ <sup>homologues</sup>. On basis of this kind of considerations, Ullrich & One (1926) distinguished two kinds of polyploids, ~~autopolyploids~~ ~~autopolyploids~~ autopolyploids ~~which~~ when essentially the same homologue has been multiplied ~~which~~ has been multiplied permitting the formation of multivalent chromosome associations through autogamy at meiosis, and allopolyploids, when the taxon has been produced by hybridization of the chromosomes of ~~two or more~~ <sup>two or more</sup> heterochromatid <sup>homologues</sup>. These terms were abbreviated to autopoloids and allopoloids by Claus, Mack & Thöni (1945). When in complex ~~allopolyploids~~ polyploids the allopoloid taxon has derived from different number of homologues of each kind, e.g. ~~from~~ a diploid AA and a tetraploid DDDD, or when it has been produced by an autopoloid duplication of a single allopoloid, e.g. AADD became AAAADDDD, the term autoallopoloid is used (Ullrich 1939). Stebbins (1947-<sup>1950</sup>) recommended that ~~the allopoloids~~ the allopoloids be divided into two groups, segmented allopoloids and true allopoloids, the ~~latter~~ former being defined as containing two pairs of chromosome sets or homologues which have in common a considerable number of homeologous chromosomal segments or even whole chromosomes, but differ from each other in respect to a significantly large number of genes or chromosome segments, so that the different ~~homologues~~ <sup>homologues</sup> homologues produce sterility when present together at the diploid level. Ullrich (1951) rejected this terminology and proposed instead the terms isogametetic and iso-anisogametetic allopoloids. Claus, Loe & Loe (1949) divided the autopoloids into parautopoloids ~~which~~ <sup>which</sup> are produced from strictly homeologous chromosomes, heteroautopoloids ~~which~~ <sup>which</sup> consist of homologues and chromosomes of which are homeologous or strict autopoloids the chromosome set of which are completely homeologous, hemi-autopoloids which are formed from hybrids between populations that differ one chromosome of which differ slightly are homeologous, hemi-allopoloids which are produced from hybrids between homeologous homologues, and allopoloids which derive from completely sterile hybrids between heterochromatid homologues.

The genetic system of the fish *Triturus*  
(G. Nankin 1933).

### Tetraploidy.

It is a basic part of cytology that a diploid ~~cytotype~~ chromosome complement is made up of a series of ~~pairs~~ ~~monoploid sets~~ two monoploid sets of a certain, basic number of chromosomes each pair of which form bivalents at meiosis so its chromosomes are said to be homologous, whereas ~~the~~ <sup>(like)</sup> other, heterologous chromosomes of tetraploid <sup>(4n)</sup> pairs do not. Diploid species of the same genus tend to have similar ~~but somewhat~~ pairs that one or more of which differ somewhat in their linear arrangement so their pairing is deficient or lacking ~~at~~. That is usually caused by ~~chrom~~ changes termed ~~as~~ ~~structural~~ ~~changes~~, ~~like~~ ~~inversion~~, ~~duplication~~, ~~deficiency~~ or plainly <sup>by</sup> small <sup>or</sup> diffuse <sup>or</sup> molecular alterations ~~that~~ ~~are~~ that involve only the <sup>chrom</sup> ~~one~~ ~~or~~ ~~several~~ ~~intervals~~ that involve <sup>a</sup> ~~the~~ ~~one~~ ~~or~~ ~~two~~ ~~different~~ ~~chromosome~~ ~~changes~~, ~~or~~ ~~they~~ ~~result~~ ~~is~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~formation~~ ~~of~~ ~~new~~ ~~chromosomes~~ ~~that~~ ~~are~~ ~~said~~ ~~to~~ ~~be~~ ~~homologous~~ (similar) to the ~~original~~ pair from which they originated. When successive changes have affected a set so that all or at least most of its chromosomes have ~~become~~ <sup>gone</sup> ~~homologous~~ homologous ~~or~~ ~~are~~ ~~tetraploid~~ so their pairing is reduced, ~~or~~ ~~tetraploid~~ ~~is~~ ~~the~~ ~~one~~ ~~longer~~ ~~able~~ ~~to~~ ~~pair~~ when hybridized, ~~the~~ ~~original~~ ~~chromosome~~ ~~complement~~ is said to have become homeochore (homoeo, similar, <sup>chore</sup> group). Homeochore chromosome complements characterize species of the same genus, <sup>which have little reduced miscibility</sup> whereas the complement of a species & its intermutable congeners is said to be homodore, <sup>where further differentiation has taken place</sup> so that ~~the~~ ~~entire~~ ~~chromosome~~ ~~complement~~ ~~most~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~chromosomes~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~entire~~ ~~complement~~ has become differentiated beyond the possibilities of meiotic pairing, it is said to be heterodore, & likely represents related but distinct <sup>with reduced miscibility in the</sup> genera (the species of which ~~may~~ ~~rarely~~ ~~cross~~ ~~in~~ ~~nature~~ ~~or~~ ~~may~~ ~~occasionally~~ ~~be~~ ~~artificially~~ ~~crossed~~ ~~to~~ ~~form~~ ~~an~~ ~~offspring~~ the chromosomes of which ~~never~~ ~~pair~~ ~~or~~ ~~pair~~ ~~only~~ ~~slightly~~ ~~at~~ ~~meiosis~~. <sup>as a result</sup> ~~Reproductive~~ ~~species~~ ~~Reproductive~~ ~~species~~ ~~are~~ ~~also~~ ~~formed~~ ~~by~~ ~~numerical~~ ~~differences~~ ~~caused~~ ~~by~~ ~~autopolyploidy~~ ~~or~~ ~~allopolyploidy~~ ~~between~~ ~~two~~ ~~homochore~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~same~~ ~~homochore~~ ~~set~~ ~~or~~ ~~of~~ ~~homochore~~ ~~complements~~. Such monoploid <sup>or</sup> ~~chromosome~~ ~~sets~~ ~~are~~ ~~also~~ ~~called~~ ~~haploids~~ (Haplodiploidy & Homoniploidy...).

A proposal to solve the problem by aid of ~~the results available~~  
~~the~~ gene-analysis was made by Mackay ( ) in connection with  
studies of ~~the~~ the wheat and their relatives, though . . .





Symptomatic cytoplasmic heredity or set out of function through hybridization, so no pairing starts; gradually after relationships... ~~longer~~...

Elymus x Lycopodium: natural hybrids in Greenland - Iceland?, ingested by Passiflora.

Autogametes: 42 x 14

5. 24 robust:

Numerous ~~empty~~ empty or ~~badly~~ ~~filled~~ only slightly filled seeds were obtained. Of the latter, few germinated in a Knop solution and gave rise to plants which formed rosettes during the three years when they were kept, but only one formed a weak stem with small culms during the third year. The spores were ~~mostly~~ empty except a few ~~in~~ middle ones that formed small outgrowths which did not dehisce. In the few pollen mother cells that could be analyzed only univalent nuclei were observed.

5. 25 - : set out:

Lycopodium

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Although minor chromosomal changes are frequently discovered in the laboratory, especially in studies of allopolyploid and other heterozygous organisms, these are not the result of recent rearrangements but rather accumulation of survival through the millennia of ~~harmless~~ ~~alterations~~ <sup>gentle</sup> and evolutionarily harmless mutations. These important changes are extremely rare, as can be seen by the fact that as an average less than one species of higher plants has been created per century since the emergence of the angiosperms more than 180 million years ago. <sup>is paralleled by the rise of species past and present.</sup> The chromosomal changes among the most conservative phenomena known, and the higher are considered more so, so that most of the species presently known have been those which maintain ~~their~~ <sup>their</sup> chromosomes and evolved away. Nevertheless, they change, though within very narrow limits as documented by the distribution, limited or wide, of the species themselves.

(Handwritten)

The distinction of the hybrids (of each group) is so abrupt, that their hybrids have never been observed in nature though one such combination can, with difficulty, be made experimentally. Their occurrence, single?, in the past is implied by their allopolyploids.

A hybrid can, however, hybridize, even in nature, with ~~a genome~~ an allopolyploid genome of which it is a part, and polyploids can hybridize even when none of the hybrids are the case of Elymus x Leymus in Canada.

Hybrid zone, generally defined, first proposed by Mackel?



homoeo - same  
 homo = same = ~~resembling~~ = blood - homo = half.  
 hetero = other, different  
 homo = same

homoeo = homoeo = like  
 homo = half. lego = ratio (of homologue in Cyt. Dist.)



i.e. cytologically identical as to pairing, with normal Mendelian genetic inheritance

homologous homologues - same: i.e. a tetraploid genome that is autopolyploid, or homologous of polyploid nature  
 homologous homologues - like: i.e. homologous of ~~essentially the same~~ <sup>not being homologous, and</sup>  
~~essentially the same~~ <sup>of little - 4 pairs, basal.</sup>  
 heterologous homologues - unlike; i.e. all chromosomes so rearranged as to reduce pairing to a minimum, though the essential genetic complement ~~is necessary~~ <sup>is necessary</sup> and its variability has not ceased, however.

genome  
 eight - homologous

or basic  
 A monophloid chromosome set and its genetic complement was named a system by Huxley (1922) studying roses, ~~which are characterized by seven chromosomes, but we find it more appropriate to use the term~~ <sup>which are characterized by seven chromosomes, but we find it more appropriate to use the term</sup> ~~monophloid~~ <sup>monophloid</sup> term homologous proposed by Huxley & Huxley (1961, 1966) in their review Primigenic species. It is equivalent to

The results from the hybridization experiments indicate that all the present varieties within the tribe ~~originate~~ <sup>evolved</sup> from a single taxon with the diploid chromosome number  $2n=14$ . This original karyotype or chromosome complement has differentiated through various stages by aid of various chromosomal rearrangements ~~to form~~ <sup>to form</sup> through various stages of homologous ~~chromosomes~~ <sup>chromosomes</sup> to homologues that are designated heterologous ~~because their chromosomes have differentiated beyond pairing possibilities, though they still have not become completely independent~~ <sup>because their chromosomes have differentiated beyond pairing possibilities, though they still have not become completely independent</sup>. Still we make up of essentially the same genes. 247 such heterologous diploid sets have been identified as an ingroup. Subsequent evolution of ~~one~~ <sup>one</sup> of the homologues has resulted in a few or many homoeological series of ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> homologues the same of the chromosomes of which still are able to pair; these series, ~~which~~ <sup>which</sup> between the members of which there is a more or less strong reproductive barrier because of reduced pairing, are identified by aid of superscript of each homoeological letter.

videlicet (i.e.)  
 two groups only in diploids, although one is more than it adds but the complement of a diploid

Digitized by Hunan Institute for Botanical Documentation

Species within each homoeological group are formed either by consecutive differentiation or homoeology, or autopolyploidy, whereas those same species are formed by allopolyploidy, which then is followed by further homologous differentiation. Examples of the first: ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~Criterium~~ <sup>Criterium</sup>... the second Nicotiana with two species, third Gayakchia, of Triticum and Elagymus





Evelyn Sigmon Ny.

2726 N. St. ~~Washington~~ NW, Washington DC-20007.

Dear E.

A good friend in Hanover showed me the thoughtfulness to send me a copy of the chronological bibliography of Vilhjelm's works, & excused himself for not having done this at once when it was published two years ago.

~~I have enjoyed this so much that it jumps to the top of my list.~~  
He needed no excuse, since I have rarely enjoyed so much a bibliography of any of my friends, but Vilhjelm was also such a special man, who grows in the memory of those who know him & ~~also~~ in the minds of those who were too young to know him, as do all those great men who dare to express ~~controversial~~ ideas that their contemporaries regard as controversial because they did not see the first ~~light~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~sun~~ ~~and~~ ~~then~~ ~~live~~ ~~freer~~. Vilhjelm was the greatest leader since that of all times, & you gave him the capital support that helped him in his education. I ~~am~~ ~~grateful~~ ~~to~~ ~~you~~ ~~for~~ ~~your~~ ~~generous~~ ~~and~~ ~~generous~~ ~~support~~ ~~in~~ ~~his~~ ~~education~~ ~~and~~ ~~in~~ ~~his~~ ~~later~~ ~~life~~.

I hope you still remember me as the leader, then in Montreal, who visited you sometimes at Hanover, ~~and~~ with my Swedish wife, who then conversed with you when I listened to Vilhjelm's ~~who~~ visited me to call him Vilja, the name of his childhood, & called me Kelli, my old nickname - ~~but~~ ~~we~~ ~~were~~ ~~together~~ ~~in~~ ~~Montreal~~. There were bright points in our night lives, & we were sorry when he passed away & we lost the contact with you. ~~I~~ ~~am~~ ~~grateful~~ ~~to~~ ~~you~~ ~~for~~ ~~your~~ ~~generous~~ ~~and~~ ~~generous~~ ~~support~~ ~~in~~ ~~his~~ ~~education~~ ~~and~~ ~~in~~ ~~his~~ ~~later~~ ~~life~~. Especially when I now observed that he had completed his biography that he then said he was making one, I had been trying to locate a copy in the libraries here, but still in vain. He left one of his great books as a gift when he visited us in Montreal, & it would have pleased him to know that not only we both but also our daughter & son-in-law enjoyed them, & that now they have all been read, no, devoured, by our three granddaughters, who have become highly interested in stories of exploration & of the biographies of great men found in our library.

One of my nephews in Rayhannah, ~~after~~ a young librarian at the University library, which once lacked one more man & job to get you & Vilhjelm's library to there, where it would have been increasingly useful, has been ~~very~~ pushing me to begin my own bibliography so that he & others would later be saved the effort of ~~the~~ ~~searching~~ ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~books~~ ~~and~~ ~~the~~ ~~biographies~~ ~~always~~ ~~have~~ ~~to~~ ~~read~~ ~~when~~ ~~they~~ ~~try~~ ~~to~~ ~~make~~ ~~such~~ ~~collections~~ ~~after~~ ~~the~~ ~~fact~~.

~~I~~ ~~decided~~ ~~to~~ ~~try~~ ~~to~~ ~~follow~~ ~~Nuttall's~~ ~~scheme~~ ~~and~~ ~~to~~ ~~do~~ ~~this~~ ~~by~~ ~~trying~~ ~~to~~ ~~do~~ ~~John~~ ~~Nuttall's~~ ~~scheme~~. You ~~will~~ ~~be~~ ~~astonished~~ ~~to~~ ~~hear~~ ~~that~~ ~~also~~ ~~my~~ ~~interest~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~subject~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~folk~~ ~~poetry~~ ~~as~~ ~~did~~ ~~Vilhjelm's~~ ~~—~~ ~~it~~ ~~probably~~ ~~has~~ ~~been~~ ~~typical~~ ~~for~~ ~~many~~ ~~who~~ ~~were~~ ~~educated~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~folk~~ ~~tradition~~ ~~on~~ ~~either~~ ~~side~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~Atlantic~~.



Pardi, L.R. 1940: Estudios críticos de las gramíneas Austral-americanas

del género *Agropyron*.

Rev. Mus. La Plata, N.S. 2, Secc. Bot.: 1-62.

(In *Botica*)

Plum-Hill

Hytis, Stems, Tassels

*Cochlospora* fr. *Rozynia* abt. *Anthus*  
relecta? (E. B. Snow)

Kramer, E. H. L. 1899: Floristische Notizen. II. Braunschw. - Bot. Anstalt. 72: 227-243.

(*Agropyron* - *Agropyron*, *Agropyron*)

Agropyron = *Anthus*

Among the grasses of New Zealand with varied relationships and two groups, <sup>groups</sup> belonging to the tribe Triticeae, which for a long period have been classified in the genus *Agropyron* and *Agrostis*, respectively (or in the genus *Anthus* and *Cochlospora*). ~~The former group was investigated~~  
~~Both groups have been~~ The former group was raised by Conner (1954), who concluded that it comprised four species in the last treatment of the latter group. Zotov (1943) concluded that the latter group would be most correctly accommodated in the ~~antitropical~~ <sup>antitropical</sup> genus *Cochlospora* comprising two species from New Zealand and one from Sierra del Fuerte, whereas Conner (1954) placed the ~~other~~ <sup>other</sup> former complex ~~as~~ as four species of the former very collective genus *Agropyron*, ~~with~~ with the remark that two of the species could belong to the genus *Anthus*, as suggested by Nees (1934), whereas according to his opinion the two others <sup>might</sup> fall into the genus *Rozynia* as defined by Nees (1934).  
~~Conner~~ Conner (1955, 1962, p. 8) made considerable hybridization experiments <sup>later</sup> with the New Zealand populations of his *Agropyron*, whereas Haas, Degeny and Penn (1962) reported on the chromosome levels of the four New Zealand species of *Agropyron* ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> the two species of *Cochlospora*, ~~Conner~~ <sup>Conner</sup> (1954) ~~continued~~ <sup>continued</sup> the tangle upon the relationship of these taxa ~~to~~ with species from Australia and described, but no reports have so far been made on hybridization <sup>experiments</sup> between the New Zealand taxa and <sup>other</sup> species from Australia and described, <sup>on hybridization experiments or hybridization</sup> ~~over~~ <sup>over</sup> between any representatives of the antitropical and boreal groups of perennial wheatgrasses.

When Conner visited Löve in Montreal in 1958, considerable time was spent on discussions of the antitropical wheatgrass problem, since at that time Löve had <sup>been included in</sup> ~~considerable~~ <sup>considerable</sup> studies of the boreal <sup>cytogenetic</sup> ~~varieties~~ <sup>varieties</sup> of the ~~perennial~~ <sup>perennial</sup> wheatgrasses. During these discussions ~~it was concluded that~~ it was agreed that before revisions could be made of the taxonomy of the antitropical populations, experimental hybridization ~~between~~ <sup>between</sup> cytogenetic studies of them and boreal taxa was needed, followed by cytogenetic and other biological investigations. ~~Through~~ Through Deacon, seed samples of the New Zealand populations were sent to Montreal by Conner and Haas so that Löve could include these taxa in his hybridization experiments and study their relationships to ~~the~~ other wheatgrasses for a more ~~exact~~ <sup>exact</sup> classification. This paper may be regarded as a result of these studies, though it is also an outgrowth of a general ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> cytogenetically founded revision of the wheatgrasses of the world which is being worked out by the senior author.

Digitized by Herbario Nacional de Chile

6

The basic genes, or the sum total of genes of the original ancestors, has been reshuffled in various ways without ~~the~~ any major genetical addition, whereas the reshuffling of chromosome parts within a set of the seven basic chromosome sets has, first, caused speciation, and second, resulted in genetic divergence followed by further speciation.

The genes, such as all the ~~Q~~ ~~take~~ ~~that~~ though their effects are somewhat varied by their proportional etc. effects, are the cause of the morphological & physiological variability, whereas the actual evolution is caused by chromosome reshuffling & polyploidization.

Hackley (Harrow) has advocated to ~~be~~ designate the genes by their "point" genes, so that those with A will belong to Triton — that would lead to confusion, because at least the D gene also occurs in more than one ~~of~~ species, & also C etc.

Actually only two logical solutions, either to include all the take as a single gene, perhaps subdivided into subgenes & sections on genetic lines, or to accept ~~it~~ ~~as~~ ~~one~~ ~~unit~~ ~~of~~ ~~inheritance~~ — both which are equally correct, ~~but~~ but depending upon points of view, but any intermediate solution must be regarded as illogical & essentially ~~is~~ fallacious & misleading, for various reasons (which?) as shown, e.g., in the designation of Elgones by Gauld (1947?).

Essentially the same genes are gene variably shared through chromosomal rearrangements.

Some genes with modifying hypotheses, gradually from within species, ~~to~~ ~~speciation~~ ~~to~~ to reproductive isolation of species to increasing to absolute crossability barriers of genes.

A genus is designated as a group of species that have evolved from the same progenitor species by lines branching. Similar designation for a tribe.

As in all cases of taxonomy, the designation proposal should be considered only as a step towards solving the problem a solution that ~~is~~ ~~not~~ ~~an~~ ~~end~~ ~~in~~ ~~itself~~ must inevitably remain tentative at least as long as all the taxa have not been completely investigated, or as a hypothesis that may serve as a point of departure for further discussion & classification.

(Lindholm - Alsholm)

Three taxonomically & evolutionarily acceptable possibilities:

- 1) All - single large genus - not practical
- 2) ~~2~~ Reduce number to as many genera as the Newshii etc. subtribes - ~~but not practical~~ -  
not easy since the subtribes are not well enough defined.
- 3) The generic system - most logical & most practical in the long run.

Status quo unacceptable, be it that of *Dactylis* still used in America,  
~~or~~ that of *Hyalobas* ~~subtribes~~ ~~in~~ in the Scandinavian flora,  
Rothlieh in the German flora, *Melilotis* in Flora Europaea,  
or *Newshii* as modified by *Tyler* in the Soviet flora.



Logarithmic to phylog.

Although Tulev (l.c.) lists unwittingly done so ~~in his paper~~ for many years so that in his place he explicitly ignores their message. His ~~change~~ theory, therefore is thoroughly phyletic rather than phylogenetic, but nonwithstanding it is the most recent classification available for the wheatgrasses.

Although the morphological method is, for various reasons, severely limited as an approach to phylogenetic classification, it has been the only method available and many of its ~~results~~ ~~remain~~ ~~drawn~~ ~~conclusions~~ have stood the tooth of time.

1956

- Sachs 1955, 1956, 1958, 1957
- Favosky 1935 (Seele & Ag. assist.)
- Hayes & Hill 1940,
- Reto 1930
- Finnet 1935, etc.
- Pittman & Pan 1953: V.

W. S. & S. J. 1950, 1951, 1956, 1957, 1954, 1955, 1946, 1947.

- Conner 1956, 1957, 1962a, b,
- Hungler 1954, 1965, 1965, 1965, 1965
- Hungler & Covas 1955
- Hungler & Manning 1964, 1965,
- Hungler, Naranjo & Boyer 1973
- Hansen 1962a, b, 1962,

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

- 2. Rensch & Hansen 1968
- Carson 1958, 1966,
- Eves 1962,
- Mitsumori & Schmidt 1956,
- Schultz-Schaeffer & Darity 1967,
- Carson & Saylor 1961,
- Golley 1949, 1951,

1956

- Wittig 1940-41,
- Finnet & Giesbrecht 1928,
- Dewey 1961 -
- Kramer 1955,
- Reigley, Darity & Dymally 1964
- Schmidt 1965 etc. - 1972, + 1974, 1972, J. & Manning 1965
- Schorler 1968
- Shiotani 1968

- Boyle & Hoggan 1955
- Chambers & Schar 1959 (W.I.)
- Mason & Reigley 1959 (III).

Oliver,  
Sears etc.







It has been said, that there are as many concepts of the basic categories of plant classification as that a distinct definition of each of these is not necessary. That is a truth with considerable modification, ~~although~~ although it may fit for much of the application of the descriptive method when used for little known taxa. Although Linnaeus never directly defined his categories, it is implicit in his work that he was thinking of ~~certain~~ a certain degree of relationship & phylogeny at the levels beyond the genus, as such an idea has been increasingly basic to most taxonomical work by later generations. ~~But when reaching the comparative approach based on the theory of evolution in the~~ ~~old~~ But when the knowledge of a taxon has reached the level of the comparative method based on the theory of evolution, the distinct definitions of the basic categories become imperative. ~~Therefore,~~ ~~the~~ taxonomists applying the experimental methods as additional to morphology for the exact biological classification of thoroughly known taxa ~~must~~ may accept the genus in its traditional sense as a collection of genera ~~which are related, as they are morphologically and cytologically,~~ to have evolved from a common ancestor, although frequently this cannot be proved by aid of safe cytogenetical indicators. For the other categories, or the genus, species, subspecies & variety, however, ~~the~~ the biological concept ~~biological or evolutionary~~ concept is ~~(highly) desirable~~. ~~According to that concept, a taxon at the genus level is biological or evolutionary~~ Biological or evolutionary modification of the Linnaean concept is modified in such a way that a taxon at these levels is defined biologically or cytogenetically but identified morphologically, properly by aid of characters of flowers, fruits or flowering branches as advocated by Linnaeus (1756), since these attributes are less affected by phenetic influences than are ~~the~~ common vegetative characteristics. The biological approach suggests that natural genera are separated by restrictions or barriers to crossability tending towards total incompatibility (Glover line 1975a Articulation). Such clusters of related species should, as far as possible, demonstrate morphological, cytogenetical & other evidence of linear branching evolution within the group and, therefore, common phylogeny ~~at restricted reproductive relation without reticulation~~ to enable stages of relationship, as well as restricted crossability ~~not or some~~





















~~For any given type~~

~~It is suggested to write, when drawing the that~~  
~~At this stage it may be worth while to~~

The basic assumption of gene analysis is that homologous or  
 homologous sets of chromosomes of allopolyploids of their diploid relatives  
 will remain identical or so slightly changed for a long period of time  
 that their individual chromosomes will pair more or less normally  
 at once or less completely in artificial hybrids between the  
 diploid carriers of the ~~desired~~ <sup>desired</sup> genome, be they diploid or polyploid (G. Lourea 1975).  
 A ~~triploid hybrid~~ ~~between a tetraploid and a diploid~~ <sup>triploid hybrid between a tetraploid and a diploid</sup>  
~~where~~ A triploid hybrid between an allotetraploid, AA<sub>2</sub>BB<sub>2</sub>, and either of its  
 diploid progenitors, AA or BB, is expected to form 2X bivalents ~~(2X)~~  
 the case of all wheatgrasses) and X univalents, or X<sub>II</sub> + X<sub>I</sub>, X being the  
 basic number of chromosomes which in the wheatgrasses is 7. The ~~bivalents~~  
 are ~~supposed~~ <sup>supposed</sup> to represent the chromosomes of the <sup>diploid</sup> progenitor ~~parents~~ that  
 does not take part in the hybridization. It is, however, not rare to observe  
 one reduction in the pairing of bivalents in such hybrids, as a result  
 of some minor changes in the chromosomes of the genome, presumably in  
 the polyploid that has replaced them homeologous or only partially homeologous  
 chromosomes, that also is responsible for the ~~observed~~ <sup>observed</sup> ~~changes~~ <sup>changes</sup>  
 the chromosomes of which are, however, never ~~entirely~~ <sup>structurally homologous</sup> distinct in  
 groups like the Triticeae in which crossability is met with at a  
 visibly low degree even between the most distinct of genera, ~~but~~  
 the ~~homeologous~~ ~~degrees~~ of the most distinct of higher, although ~~the~~  
~~reciprocal~~ pairing may be practically ~~absent~~ <sup>absent</sup>.

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Gene analysis becomes difficult when one or both participants in the  
 hybridization, because it may sometimes be difficult to discern between  
 proportioned autosynthetic pairing of the chromosomes of both parents and  
 the autosynthetic pairing of chromosomes derived from the one parent.  
 A skilled observer, will, however, rarely ~~have~~ <sup>be</sup> ~~difficulties~~ <sup>difficulties</sup> for their own  
 have difficulty in identifying the associated bivalents, although such a  
 possibility always must be kept in mind. Nevertheless, there are other problems  
 in the observation of pairing are frequently encountered, ~~as~~ <sup>as</sup>  
 as discussed in certain detail by Gaul (1958).







Some wise men have said, that human life & human culture is based on grasses, & there can hardly be any doubt that the grass family plays a large role in the wellbeing of man & his animals than any other family of plants. All grasses are not equally important, so that man & domesticated animals utilize only a fraction of the perhaps 650 genera & more than 10,000 species of the grass family. ~~There is no reasonable estimate as to the~~ Be it as it may, but although several grasses of the tribes Festuceae and Aveneae may seem to furnish the bulk of the fodder for domesticated animals in the northern hemisphere, ~~the~~ the ~~grass~~ grasses of greatest concern for the welfare of man & his stock in historical times all seem to belong to the ~~tribe~~ tribe Triticeae, ~~or to~~ ~~what~~ the so-called wheatgrasses, or cultivated wheat & its relatives. It has even been claimed with ~~reasonable reason~~ that without wheat there would have ~~been~~ been little human culture, although the fact that most cultivated plants were first bred & domesticated by Stoneage Indians in America, ~~from which the typical wheatgrasses that gave rise to the modern~~ ~~later~~ bread wheat are absent.

Botanists have long known that wheat, ~~is related to~~ ~~some~~ rye & barley are related to numerous wild grasses, & that ~~they~~ these grains occasionally hybridize with one of these. The nature of this relationship, however, has remained obscure for various reasons, so that even the ~~tribe~~ ~~tribe~~ ~~tribe~~ limits of the tribe itself were unclear & allowed the inclusion of even the very collective term ~~family~~ of the ~~genus~~ collective genus Brachypodium. In recent decades, however, extensive studies of artificial hybridization & chromosome morphology have revealed that this latter genus stands apart from the other units, not only by its much smaller chromosomes but also by its inability to cross with any of the wheatgrasses, even those that morphologists agreed ~~seemed~~ looked closely related to its species. The wheatgrasses, as we now define the tribe, consist of ~~some~~ 320 species of ~~grass~~ a number of variable genera which all are characterized by a caryand spike, laterally compressed spikelets with two glumes, single starch grains, & perhaps most important, rather large chromosomes, the basic number of which is  $x=7$ . It is also important to note, that

natural hybrids between several of the dominically defined genera are not rare when these taxa come into contact, and that it has been found possible to cross every genus with any of the other genera under experimental conditions, though sometimes this is connected with considerable difficulties. It ought also to be emphasized that many of these hybrids are not only completely sterile but also completely free of even the slightest meiotic pairing, though the success in crossing them is certainly indicative of relationship that may be masked by considerable rearrangement of all the chromosomes, and of relationship of the cytoplasm of all the taxa involved. The fact ~~that~~ of the crossability has confounded some taxonomists ~~in the~~ before its variations and relationships to meiotic pairing or lack of it became evident, but it has also stimulated plant breeders to experiment widely with many of these grasses and to express in that connection dreams so wild that they are perhaps unlikely ever to become true — or perhaps they will nevertheless?

~~While that has been done on the hybridization of whitgroves~~  
~~when a key group of plants has been studied with a wide~~

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

writer in morphology and also has no absolute crossability barriers, it can be expected that taxonomists had led to various conclusions when trying to classify its taxa at various levels. ~~Despite of the~~  
~~pointing out of the~~ Since Solomon's justice depends upon how Solomon was raised, as Nash Thuan is said to have said. Those raised on the darical morphological philosophy tend to overlook the significance of the hybridizations ~~at least~~ and the changes and look mainly at the few distinct morphological characters; they are likely to conclude that only a single or a few genera are involved. Whereas those brought up on genetics and evolutionary experimentation might lean towards emphasizing the variable crossability and the meiotic pairing ~~to the detriment~~  
~~of but not~~ as well as certain distinct ~~and~~ combinations of morphological ~~characters~~  
the few morphological distinctions and thus conclude that the genera are many. As a matter of fact, modern morphological taxonomists have represented both these points of view and everything between them, and they have repeatedly become confused by what they claimed to be a lack of distinct genetic delimitation due to the occurrence of transitional spike characteristics that others had solved by simply moving artificial taxa from one group to another.





Fig. More recently, the Swedish botanist Rensch & Hensen (1965) recognized only 14 years in the tribe and followed a proposal by Gould (1942?) in uniting the collective genus Agropyron of Elymus into a single genus with the latter name. The recent

Fig. comprehensive approach is that of the Japanese geneticist Sakamoto (1974), who accepted 15 years which he classified into <sup>group of 10 years</sup> ~~the~~ Mediterranean-Central Asiatic and Arctic-Taigian groups <sup>of 5 years</sup> - basis of their distribution or their germination and growth habits, as well as on cytogenetics - their crossability and chromosome characteristics. The last revision is by the Danish cytologist Frederik in his Plant Geography of 1976 in which he adopts a monogenic system based - that of Rensch but with only 13 years.

Fig. This review may serve as a demonstration of the confusion among taxonomists as to the generic division of the wheatgrasses, though it ~~hasly shows~~ ~~marks~~ ~~the extreme~~ did not mention the extreme views of Krause (1958), recently supported by Shubert & one of his co-workers, who felt that the morphological variability, as like the general crossability, supported the inclusion of all the tribe in a single genus Triticum. <sup>theoretical possibility - the model of a combined wheat, however</sup> ~~replacement of Triticum that must be so widespread if such a point of view is established. But let us leave out that note for a while. the taxonomy for a while on that note.~~

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

European taxonomists have long been aware that hybrids between certain species of wheatgrasses occur occasionally, and that some of the wild tax- may casually cross with the cultivated grains. One of the great ~~botanical controversies~~ of the last century concerned a plant which ~~some~~ Several natural hybrids had been listed in European manuals, and one of the great botanical controversies of the last century concerned a plant which was discovered close to cultivated fields in southern France in 1800 and soon found also in Italy from where Bertolini described it in Flora Italiana in 1805 as the hybrid Agropyron triticoides. Some others claimed it to be a new introduction from the Gria. After a lengthy discussion it was indeed proved to be a hybrid between Agropyron ~~some~~ species and macaroni wheat. Even before the rediscovery of Mendel's laws,





Although it may seem convenient to use only a few cytoplasmic genetic  
markers, their convenience diminishes when these groups become unusually large  
so that even a critical key ceases to be useful for their ~~own~~ identification.

Exact biological classification that reflects the processes of evolution is especially important  
for plants of economic importance, because it is basic for various methods used  
for their improvement and their notably plant breeding, which is mainly based on the  
application of the processes of interspecific ~~and~~ rarely includes the <sup>hybridization</sup> crossing of good species  
or well established genes for the single reason that well designed ~~the~~ species of  
genus do not mix although occasionally and by human assistance they sometimes may cross.  
That is the reason for that the most advanced system of classification has been  
employed for the cultivated plants and their notably the most essential of them,  
the grain producing grasses and their relatives that are grouped together on the tribe Triticeae.

Since the tribe *Tristemonaceae* includes one of the ~~most~~ <sup>most</sup> economically most important ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> cereal crops and numerous forage grasses, ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~study~~ <sup>study</sup> of ~~several~~ <sup>several</sup> ~~to~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~grasses~~ <sup>grasses</sup> and ~~incident~~ <sup>incident</sup> ~~stages~~ <sup>stages</sup>, ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~study~~ <sup>study</sup> of ~~its~~ <sup>its</sup> ~~denigration~~ <sup>denigration</sup> into a distinctly polyploid system is highly desirable. ~~Although~~ <sup>Although</sup> ~~many~~ <sup>many</sup> ~~geneticists~~ <sup>geneticists</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~study~~ <sup>study</sup> ~~has~~ <sup>has</sup> ~~made~~ <sup>made</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~made~~ <sup>made</sup> ~~efforts~~ <sup>efforts</sup> ~~to~~ <sup>to</sup> ~~find~~ <sup>find</sup> ~~evolutionary~~ <sup>evolutionary</sup> ~~relationships~~ <sup>relationships</sup> between the various diploid and polyploid species of the complex is considerable under experimental conditions, and many such hybrids have by now been known to occur under natural conditions (Foster 1951). During the past three or four decades many geneticists have not only produced a ~~large~~ <sup>large</sup> ~~number~~ <sup>number</sup> ~~of~~ <sup>of</sup> ~~such~~ <sup>such</sup> ~~studies~~ <sup>studies</sup> these hybrids cytologically and morphologically and frequently employed for their studies either karyomorphology or, more often, the ~~so-called~~ <sup>so-called</sup> ~~gene~~ <sup>gene</sup> ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> ~~technique~~ <sup>technique</sup> of so-called gene-analysis invented by and successfully applied by Huxford (1930 and later) and his collaborators in ~~explaining~~ <sup>explaining</sup> the evolution of wheat and their relatives. This method is based on the assumption











Elymus (U.I. 141-50)

Roegneria

~~E. chinensis (Trin. ex Bory de Saint-Vincent) (1111) 66, in sin. = Triton chinensis~~

~~E. guineensis Steud., loc. cit. (Himal. Nepal).~~

~~E. guineensis (Steud.) Hitchc. & Thell. Det. 20 (1855) 425. P. (L.) Hitchc. & Thell. (1912) 1212.~~

Fig. in Pl. R. (1912) 1212.

Cynclonus (Nauda) (1823) 40. Det. A. N. S. B. 202: 690.

~~atropis (Nauda) l. c. 548: (China (Hannu)) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~flavus (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. flavus N. A. S.~~

~~velutinus (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. guineensis (Steud.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~atropis (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~atropis (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~atropis (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~atropis (Nauda) l. c. 548: = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

Elymus tenuioratus (Nauda) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China)

E. guineensis Steud., 1841, Synonymus 6: 89 (China, Nepal).

Elymus

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

*Cynclonus*

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Elymus Anemolobos

Elymus

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

Roegneria

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~

~~chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell. 1912 (China, Nepal) = E. chinensis (Trin.) Hitchc. & Thell.~~



See *Salvinia*, Kista paper, for notes  
p. 3 *Ayuga* et.  
fr. New Index.

STAGE II  
26 July, 1976

Leymus Hochst. \*

Rhizomatous perennials. Leaves flat or convolute, glaucous, densely and shortly hairy on veins above, glabrous beneath; ligule short. Inflorescence a spike; rachis tough. Spikelets subsessile, usually imbricate, with 3-5(-6) florets; rachilla disarticulating above the glumes and beneath each floret. Glumes narrowly lanceolate to linear-subulate, covering the sides of the lower florets, 1- to 5-veined, glabrous or hairy, not or shortly awned. Lemma lanceolate, 5-veined, not or shortly awned. Palea nearly as long as the lemma, 2-keeled. Stamens 3. Lodicules 2. Ovary hairy at the top.

- 1 Glumes 2.2-3.2 mm wide, with 3-5 distinct veins;  
spikelets in pairs at each node of the rachis
- 2 Upper part of stems and rachis glabrous .. .. 1. arenarius
- 2 Upper part of stems and rachis densely pubescent .. .. 2. mollis
- 1 Glumes not more than 2 mm wide, with 1-3 obscure veins
- 3 Spikelets solitary at each node of the rachis .. .. 8. ramosus
- 3 Spikelets in groups 2-4(-6) at each node of the rachis
- 4 Keels of the palea glabrous or aculeolate only near  
the apex; spike robust; spikelets usually in groups  
of 3-4(-6) at each node of the rachis .. .. 3. racemosus
- 4 Keels of the palea spinose-ciliate at least in the  
upper half; spikes not robust; spikelets in groups  
of 2-3 at each node of the rachis
- 5 Basal part of glumes narrowly lanceolate, the lower  
glume with its basal part covering that of the  
upper; lemma 10-15 mm .. .. .. 4. karelinii

Digitized by Hort Institute for Botanical Documentation

\* By A. Melderis.

- 5 Basal part of glumes linear, the lower glume with its basal part not covering that of the upper; lemma 4-9 mm
- 6 Plants with long, creeping rhizomes, not forming tufts; leaves usually flat, with thin, distant veins above  
 .. .. . 7. multicaulis
- 6 Plant with shortly creeping rhizomes, forming small tufts connected by a rhizome; leaves flat or convolute, with prominent, approximate veins
- 7 Lemma glabrous on the back, with an awn 1-2 mm; glumes scabrid on the margins and on the middle vein towards the apex .. .. . 5. akmalensis
- 7 Lemma more or less hairy on the back, with an awn 0.5-1 mm; glumes usually hairy .. .. . 6. paboanus

1. L. arenarius (L.) Hochst., Flora (Regensb.) 7: 118 (1848)

(Elymus arenarius L.). Glaucous perennial with long, creeping rhizomes.

Stems usually 50-150 cm, robust, glabrous. Leaves 8-15 mm wide, flat, with convolute margins, densely and minutely scabrid or hairy on veins above, glabrous beneath. Spikes 15-35 cm x 10-25 mm, dense; rhachis glabrous except for spinose-ciliate main angles. Spikelets 20-32 mm, with 3-4(-5) florets, in pairs at each node of the rhachis. Glumes 15-25 x 2.2-3.2 mm, narrowly lanceolate, tapering to an acuminate-subulate point, with 3-4 distinct veins, keeled, glabrous or shortly hairy, especially on the keel. Lemma 12-25 mm, 5- to 7-veined, densely hairy, with short, soft hairs. Palea sparsely ciliate on keels near the apex. Anthers 7-8 mm.  $2n=56$ . Maritime sands and sandy shores of large lakes. N. & W. Europe, from the Arctic to N.W. Spain; an occasional casual elsewhere. Be Br Da Fa Fe Ga Hb Hs Ho Is No Rs(N,B,C) Su.

2. L. mollis (Trin.) Hara, Bot. Mag. (Tokyo) 52: 232 (1938) (Elymus mollis Trin.). Like 1 but stems usually shortly hairy below the spikes; rhachis hairy; spikelets 18-25 mm; glumes 3- to 5-veined, hairy;

palea shortly ciliate on the keels; anthers c. 6.5 mm.  $2n=28$ .

Sand-dunes. Iceland. Is. (North America, N.E. Asia.)

3. L. racemosus (Lam.) Tzvelev, Not. Syst. (Leningrad) 20:

429 (1960) (Elymus giganteus Vahl.). Perennial with long, creeping rhizomes. Stems 50-100 cm, up to 10 mm in diameter in the basal part. Leaves up to 15 mm wide, scabrid on the veins above and on the margins, glabrous beneath. Spikes 15-35 cm x 10-20 mm, gradually tapering towards the apex. Spikelets 15-20 mm, with 4-6 florets, compressed, in groups of 3-6. Glumes 15-25 mm, linear-lanceolate, acuminate-subulate above, glabrous. Lemma 10-14 mm, 7-veined, acute, softly hairy in the lower part, glabrous towards the apex. Anthers c. 5 mm. Dry, sandy soils. S.E. Europe. Bu Rm Rs (C,W,K,E) Tu.

1 Stems nearly always shortly hairy below the spikes; spikes very dense, with spikelets in groups of 3-5(-6);

glumes 1-veined .. .. . (a) subsp. racemosus

1 Stems nearly always glabrous below the spikes; spikes fairly lax, with spikelets in groups of 3

2 Glumes 2- to 3-veined; keels of the palea glabrous or with a few cilia in the upper part .. .. . (b) subsp. sabulosus

2 Glumes 1-veined; keels of the palea with numerous cilia in the upper part .. .. . (c) subsp. klokovi

(a) Subsp. racemosus: Stems nearly always shortly hairy below spikes. Spikes dense, with spikelets in groups of 3-5(-6) at each node of the rhachis. Glumes 1-veined. Keels of the palea glabrous or with a few cilia in the upper part.  $2n=28$ . S.E. Russia. (Caucasus to C. Asia.)

(b) Subsp. sabulosus (Bieb.) Tzvelev, Nov. Syst. Pl. Vasc. (Leningrad)

8: 65 (1971) (Elymus sabulosus Bieb., Leymus sabulosus (Bieb.) Tzvelev):

Stems nearly always glabrous below the spikes. Spikes fairly lax, with spikelets in groups of 3 at each node of the rhachis. Glumes 2- to 3-veined. Keels of the palea glabrous or with a few cilia in the upper part.

$2n=28$ . Throughout the range of the species.

















Although ~~the~~ all taxonomic categories originally were susceptible units that by necessity were based on morphological groupings, for the sake of convenience, it has long been a tendency among botanists to superimpose them with some kind of phylogenetic relationship. [Thus, the highly subjective classical trend to accept as species and genera units that - (e.g. *Urtica* spp.) - was in the last century replaced ~~by~~ by the Austrian school by a designation of the genus by ~~the~~ aid of geographical distribution, etc.]

Since such corrections ~~are~~ ~~at the best~~ have at the best been speculative for the genus, ~~at least~~ only minor readjustment of the admittedly insufficient classification of most plants has been accepted, although in a few significant cases considerable changes have been proposed.



At about the same time an evolving line of annuals  
~~came~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~Southwest~~ ~~Asia~~ ~~at~~ ~~last~~ ~~but~~ ~~not~~ ~~least~~ later leading  
to the differentiation of ~~at least~~ sixteen clearly distinct  
hybrids, some of which formed autopoloid series. Within  
both the annual ~~and~~ ~~perennial~~ ~~series~~ hybrids a certain  
degree of hybridization followed by allopolyploidy also created  
new ~~and~~ ~~successful~~ groups, each of which has differentiated  
further ~~into~~ at the species ~~and~~ lower levels ~~and~~ dispersed to  
areas widely surpassing those of the original diploids.

We interpret the results from the hybridization experiments of the Triticeae as a strong support of the ~~theory~~ ~~that~~ opinion that ~~the~~ all the wheatgrasses derive from a single ~~hybrid~~ ~~hybrid~~ of a primary hybrid which characterized a species that has since re-evolved from a primitive member of the Festuceae in the late Cretaceous or early Tertiary in the mountainous regions which now form the ~~Great~~ Australian; ~~some~~ of a part of the heterogeneous tribe Brachypodieae may have ~~auto~~ branched from this early Triticeae line, whereas other taxa presently included in the ~~genus~~ ~~Brachypodieae~~ tribe or even in the collective genus Brachypodieae bear no relationship to these grasses. The original hybrid is likely to have ~~been~~ been identical to the present S hybrid, ~~although it has~~ ~~although~~ ~~the~~ ~~identity~~ ~~of~~ ~~from~~ ~~this~~ ~~hybrid~~ ~~have~~ ~~evolved~~, ~~first~~, ~~second~~ ~~this~~ ~~hybrid~~ ~~has~~, by aid of inbreeding, several interchanges of unions ~~more~~ ~~or~~ ~~less~~ ~~diffuse~~. This hybrid ~~is~~ ~~as~~ ~~characterized~~ not only by a distinct combination of certain rigid morphological characters but also by minor changes in ~~the~~ ~~number~~ ~~of~~ ~~chromosomes~~ ~~causing~~ ~~the~~ ~~formation~~ ~~of~~ ~~related~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~representing~~ ~~isolated~~ ~~species~~ ~~in~~ ~~their~~ ~~interjunctile~~ ~~rac~~es, which presently are distributed in isolated areas ~~from~~ ~~North~~ ~~Africa~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~west~~ ~~through~~ ~~the~~ ~~Asian~~ ~~mountains~~ ~~to~~ ~~the~~ ~~mountains~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~North~~ ~~America~~ ~~and~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~Eurasian~~ ~~and~~ ~~North~~ ~~American~~ ~~mountains~~, perhaps also reaching North Africa or southern Australia. ~~It~~ ~~has~~ ~~been~~ ~~the~~ ~~work~~ ~~of~~ ~~some~~ ~~workers~~ ~~caused~~ ~~by~~ ~~local~~ ~~experiments~~ ~~we~~ ~~do~~ ~~not~~ ~~give~~ ~~rise~~ ~~also~~ ~~to~~ ~~by~~ ~~aid~~ ~~of~~ ~~drastic~~ ~~chromosomal~~ ~~rearrangements~~, ~~projects~~ ~~to~~ ~~keep~~ ~~these~~ ~~present~~ ~~species~~ ~~from~~ ~~the~~ ~~restricted~~ ~~of~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~to~~ ~~new~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~of~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~so~~ ~~distinct~~ ~~that~~ ~~they~~ ~~are~~ ~~unable~~ ~~to~~ ~~pair~~ ~~with~~ ~~the~~ ~~original~~ ~~or~~ ~~original~~ ~~those~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~primary~~ ~~hybrid~~, though a certain degree of crossability has been retained because of partial ~~of~~ ~~cytogenetic~~ ~~relationships~~. ~~By~~ ~~aid~~ ~~of~~ ~~drastic~~ ~~more~~ ~~or~~ ~~less~~ ~~diffuse~~ ~~chromosomal~~ ~~rearrangements~~ ~~the~~ ~~taxa~~ ~~belonging~~ ~~to~~ ~~this~~ ~~hybrid~~ ~~have~~ ~~a~~ ~~few~~ ~~times~~ ~~given~~ ~~rise~~ ~~to~~ ~~new~~ ~~autopoloid~~ ~~species~~, but it has more frequently changed, by aid of more or less diffuse chromosomal rearrangements, into new hybrids so drastically distinct from the primary hybrid that they rarely are able to cross ~~at~~ ~~all~~ ~~then~~ ~~their~~ chromosomes can't pair; these changes have especially ~~markedly~~ ~~markedly~~ taken place ~~mainly~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~mountains~~ ~~of~~ ~~southern~~ ~~Africa~~ ~~where~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~early~~ ~~Tertiary~~ ~~the~~ ~~new~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~was~~ ~~presently~~ ~~found~~ ~~the~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~that~~ ~~we~~ ~~describe~~ ~~at~~ ~~least~~ ~~five~~ ~~new~~ ~~genus~~ ~~hybrids~~ ~~was~~ ~~found~~, ~~the~~ ~~methods~~ ~~also~~ ~~produced~~ ~~new~~ ~~series~~ ~~of~~ ~~autopoloid~~ ~~species~~.

Diffuse chromosome rearrangements are not clear signals of interchanges or inversions, but rather mixed.  
Occurs in one species hybrids?

There is a reason to believe that the evident morphological relationships of all the grasses of the tribe Poaceae is caused by ~~common descent~~ not only by common ~~descent~~ descent from a single hybrid genome ~~of one and a hybrid genome~~ a single species with a karyome of seven large chromosomes, but also by retaining the primary genes of this original form through reshuffling by aid of various chromosomal rearrangements that have resulted in new karyomes that sometimes ~~have been developed~~ have almost developed beyond the possibility of crossability.

Some of these ~~new~~ karyomes have evolved further by the one kind of chromosomal rearrangement to form an array of diploid species that remain retain their crossability between them within one of their chromosomes to form an array of diploid species that retain their crossability but are effectively isolated from each other by a certain degree of reproductive isolation; by aid of natural selection one of these species has later found interfertile but geographically distinct geographical races.

Some of the karyomes have formed a autopolyploid series. When the ~~partial~~ partial differentiation of a karyome ~~has~~ has not reached a stage ~~that~~ that precludes one of the ~~genetic~~ genetic interchanges or prevents the pairing of most of the chromosomes when hybridized, it is reasonable to regard them only as variation of the one ~~hybrid genome~~ hybrid genome which then is designated by a letter (subscript being used). Polyploids found from such karyomes are, then, autopolyploids, either panautopolyploids when consisting of the one unarranged karyome, or hexiautopolyploids when slightly ~~with~~ different variation of the one karyome are involved. Such polyploids are not polyploids of both these kinds are met with in one group of the wheatgrasses, and since they certainly have originated by branching from the one original karyome, there is ~~no~~ a good reason to retain them in the one ~~genetic~~ strict genus as the original karyome. However, when ~~it is~~ ~~found~~ found polyploids more rarely in the wheatgrasses, a then is formed by hybridization of two distinct karyomes followed by polyploidization and, thus, allopolyploidy, this does not constitute a case of linear branching but rather by a kind of reticulations. . . .  
Not one genus.

(General - as for the Festuceae . . . but as long as palaeontological evidence is not available in regard of the amount that the ~~original~~ original chromosomes are larger than the genes, the ~~evolution~~ evolution in the opposite direction cannot be precluded.)

Hybrids (Wheat genome, p. 208): least avoid the false circumstances of delimitation of genus.

Festiva + Polyploids: small, well delimited genus.

(No real intervarieties)

Line = hybrid 1961, sp. 412: intermediate position.

The karyotype of the Balkan plant is morphologically similar to that of *F. festuoides* from Novica and *E. striatum* from the Crimea; since the *Festuca* ~~genus~~ of the Balkan plant could be hybridized with . . . they may contain the S karyome, although the study could not be completed by aid of a suitable analysis of the hybrids for reasons understandable.



~~and~~

If all in one genus, then not Formosa but Tortum,  
 but since there is a marked preference to crossability ~~between~~  
 within the annual & perennial groups, respectively, & very much  
 less between these groups, the same logic might perhaps also  
 lead to the acceptance of the annual genus Tortum s. lat.,  
 & the almost exclusively annual Elymus s. lat. — however,  
 neither of these solutions is biologically reasonable or approximately  
 practical so further splitting certainly is to be preferred.

Accepting less comprehensive genera inevitably leads to the  
 need to define them more exactly. Since ~~crossability~~ <sup>crossability</sup>  
 crossability is met with even between groups as definitely  
 distinct as, e.g. Agropyron juncea, elymus spicatus etc. —  
 although the sterility of the offspring is complete because of a total  
 lack of pairing between the chromosomes involved, that cannot be  
 utilized as a reasonable criterion, ~~and the crossability~~ The  
 crossability of the allopolyploids to both ~~the~~ the diploid ~~groups~~  
 from which they clearly have arisen would also be a ~~reasonable~~  
~~characteristic~~, since their unrelated ~~genetic~~  
 as unrelated as the diploid Agropyron taurin & the diploid perennial  
 species of Hordeum would ~~be placed in one genus~~ have to  
 be put into ~~one~~ either the one genus as Elymus s. str.  
 or . . .

Digitized by Hunt Institute for Botanical Documentation

Although the same reasoning could & ought to be used as a  
 basis of a thorough biologically based revision of the annual  
 groups, which presently is constituted of the very collective genera  
Tortum & Elymus & the ~~most~~ <sup>most</sup> strictly biologically strict genera  
Heteranthelus, Dasyglossum, Secale, Eranoglossum, Taeniocoma, Hordeum s. str.,  
Critopsis & Horwardia, we ~~defer~~ <sup>defer</sup> prefer to defer such a  
 revision to a later occasion. ~~It ought to be noted,~~  
 however, that earlier determinations have <sup>split into more restricted genera</sup> divided the two first ~~of~~ groups,  
 into more restricted genera, as e.g. Nivaria <sup>(Niv.)</sup> or Critaria Link (1831), <sup>proposed by Beckley</sup>  
Arctoglossum (Vahl) Spach <sup>possibly in the wild</sup> Ely. but since even that is insignificant on basis  
 of our present knowledge of their genetic constitution, . . .

Secale L.

caeruleum L.

ssp. caeruleum

ssp. montanum (Guss.)

ssp. sibiricum (Host)

ssp. Vasil'ii (Borsh.)

sylvestre Host

ssp. segetale (Zinn.)

Doris Yusteav.

Ken. D.S. Inst.,

Pogon Street 2,

Leningrad 197022

Dasyglossum (Cov. & Dur.) Borsh. (= Hagallia Schum 1866, non Schultze 1866)

villosum (L.) Dur. (Secale villosum L.), ambiguum (L.) Dur.

hordeaceum (Borsh.) Cov. & Dur. (= H. hordeaceum (Borsh.) Hark. = Agropyron hordeaceum Britton)

Dear Boris:

Many thanks for the two reports - Charlotte & especially for the book for the symposium - the Arctic floristic region that the mail needed over two months to get from Leningrad to San José! Although it always is the struggle ~~involved~~ with dictionaries involved when we read Russian papers, you write ~~in~~ in such a way that we believe we get the meaning, and rather easily. ~~Therefore~~ However, ~~with~~ we & many others would have preferred to read this in English - ~~the~~ but it is with more for Russian, than for other for the single reason that many times more there study the Arctic than here - & also ~~the~~ botanists with a better training & wider knowledge than students even from Harvard, the contribution by Yang is like sticking out one's tongue ~~after reading~~ compared to your papers, & so is that of Reining, but Doris reviews what he has reviewed before & does it well as always. I enjoyed especially your ~~text~~ analytic list of species, which is perhaps not as good for extra-Soviet areas because you have only secondary knowledge of these places & not too good information to sense it on, but the Soviet part is especially interesting to us. We are pleased to see that an Atlas has influenced even your "conservative" morphological ideas somewhat, & that you have accepted an "cryptophyte" term, although Aleksandrov seems to think it is your creation rather than mine! And I disagree with your attempt to explain away the distinct tuberos in Iceland & Greenland, they are no less Arctic than those you accept in Alaska which you also have not seen - we have a paper about that disagreement in Phytogeography, the ~~Festschrift~~ for Tuxen this spring. You probably have heard that Doris has translated Aleksandrov's good book on the Arctic & Antarctic for the Cambridge University Press, wish only they had been interested in a translation of your Arctic symposium, too.







on behalf of the IAPT, which then had a <sup>committee</sup> ~~committee~~ of the IAPT  
please see <sup>the</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>chromosome</sup> ~~chromosome~~ <sup>number</sup> ~~number~~ <sup>lists</sup> ~~lists~~, which were  
initiated in 1964 by Ashell, Lee and Otho... Solbrig as a facility for a rapid publication  
of chromosome ~~also~~ that otherwise might have remained unpublished.